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MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
20415 NORDHOFF STREET

CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 91311

DEAR STOCKHOLDER: 

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of MRV Communications, Inc. (the “Company”) to be held on Thursday, 
December 12, 2002, at 9:00 a.m. at the offices of our wholly-owned subsidiary, Luminent, Inc., 20550 Nordhoff St., Chatsworth, CA 91311. 

At the Annual Meeting, you will be asked to: elect six directors of the Company and ratify the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s 
independent accountants. 

Details of the matters to be considered at the Annual Meeting are contained in the accompanying Proxy Statement that we urge you to consider carefully. 
We are also pleased to offer you the opportunity to receive future stockholder communications electronically. By signing up for electronic delivery, you 
can receive stockholder communications faster and can help us reduce our printing and mailing costs. For more information, see “Electronic Delivery of 
Stockholder Communications” on page 3 of the accompanying Proxy Statement.

WHETHER OR NOT YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON, PLEASE SUBMIT YOUR VOTE USING ONE OF THE 
VOTING METHODS DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED MATERIALS. SUBMITTING YOUR VOTING INSTRUCTIONS BY ANY OF THESE 
METHODS WILL NOT AFFECT YOUR RIGHT TO ATTEND THE MEETING AND VOTE IN PERSON SHOULD YOU SO CHOOSE.

Sincerely, 

       

Noam Lotan 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
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MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
20415 NORDHOFF STREET

CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 91311

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS: 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of MRV Communications, Inc. (the “Company”), a Delaware corporation, will 
be held on Thursday, December 12, 2002 at 9:00 a.m. at the offices of our wholly-owned subsidiary, Luminent, Inc., 20550 Nordhoff St., Chatsworth, 
CA 91311 and thereafter as it may be adjourned from time to time: 

At the Meeting the Stockholders will be asked:

 1. To elect six members of the Board of Directors, all of whom currently serve as Directors, to serve for the ensuing year;

 2. To ratify the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as independent accountants for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2002; and

3. To consider and act upon any matters incidental to the foregoing and any other matters which may properly come before the meeting or 
    any adjournment or adjournments thereof.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on November 1, 2002 as the record date for the determination of Stockholders entitled to notice 
of and vote at the meeting and any adjournment or adjournments thereof. 

WE HOPE THAT ALL STOCKHOLDERS WILL BE ABLE TO ATTEND THE MEETING IN PERSON. IN ORDER TO ASSURE THAT A 
QUORUM IS PRESENT AT THE MEETING, PLEASE SUBMIT YOUR VOTE USING ONE OF THE VOTING METHODS DESCRIBED IN 
THE ATTACHED MATERIALS. SUBMITTING YOUR VOTING INSTRUCTIONS BY ANY OF THESE METHODS WILL NOT AFFECT 
YOUR RIGHT TO ATTEND THE MEETING AND VOTE IN PERSON SHOULD YOU SO CHOOSE. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

      

Shlomo Margalit 
Secretary 

Chatsworth, California 
November 12, 2002 
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MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
20415 NORDHOFF STREET

CHATSWORTH, CALIFORNIA 91311

PROXY STATEMENT

November 12, 2002

The enclosed Proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors of MRV Communications, Inc. (the “Company”), a Delaware corporation, for use at the 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at the offices of our wholly-owned subsidiary, Luminent, Inc., 20550 Nordhoff St., Chatsworth, CA 91311, 
at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, December 12, 2002, and at any adjournment or adjournments thereof. 

Stockholders of record at the close of business on November 1, 2002 (the “Record Date”) will be entitled to vote at the meeting or any adjournment 
thereof. On the Record Date, 94,453,402 shares of Common Stock, $.0017 par value (“Common Stock”), of the Company and outstanding. There are no 
other voting securities of the Company. Each share entitles the holder to one vote with respect to all matters submitted to stockholders at the meeting. 
A quorum for the meeting is a majority of the shares outstanding. 

If your shares are treated as a broker non-vote or abstention, your shares will be included in the number of shares represented for purposes of 
determining whether a quorum is present. Abstentions will also be counted as shares present and entitled to be voted. Broker non-votes, however, are 
not counted as shares present and entitled to be voted with respect to the matters that the broker has not expressly voted. Thus, broker non-votes will 
not affect the outcome of any of the matters being voted upon at the meeting. 

If your shares are held in a brokerage account or by another nominee, you are considered the “beneficial owner” of shares held in “street name,” and 
these proxy materials are being forwarded to you by your broker or nominee (the “record holder”) along with a voting instruction card. As the beneficial 
owner, you have the right to direct your record holder how to vote your shares, and the record holder is required to vote your shares in accordance 
with your instructions. If you do not give instructions to your record holder, the record holder will be entitled to vote the shares in its discretion on 
Proposal 1 (Election of Directors) and Proposal 2 (Ratification of Independent Accountants) 

As the beneficial owner of shares, you are invited to attend the annual meeting. Please note, however, that if you are a beneficial owner, you may not 
vote your shares in person at the meeting unless you obtain a “legal proxy” from the record holder that holds your shares.

If you are a beneficial owner of shares, you can vote your shares using one of the following methods: 

• Vote through the Internet at www.proxyvote.com 
• Vote by telephone using the toll-free number shown on the proxy card 
• Complete and return a written proxy card 

Votes submitted through the Internet or by telephone must be received by 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on December 11, 2002. Internet and telephone 
voting are available 24 hours a day, and if you use one of those methods, you do not need to return a proxy card. 

Submitting a Proxy by any of the above methods will not in any way affect your right to attend the meeting and vote in person. The Proxy may be 
revoked at any time before it is exercised by giving written notice to the Secretary of the Company prior to the Annual Meeting or by appearing at the 
Annual Meeting and voting in person. The shares represented by all properly submitted Proxies received in time for the meeting will be voted as specified 
therein. In the absence of a special choice, shares will be voted in favor of the election of those persons named in this Proxy Statement as Directors and 
in favor of the ratification of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent accountants for the year ending December 31, 2002. 

The cost of soliciting proxies will be borne by the Company. The Company may reimburse brokerage firms and other persons representing beneficial 
owners of shares of their expenses in forwarding solicitation material to such beneficial owners. Proxies may also be solicited by certain of the Company’s 
directors, officers and employees, without compensation, personally or by telephone, telegram, letter, facsimile or e-mail. 

The Directors and executive officers of the Company as a group owned approximately 5.0% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company 
at the Record Date. Each of the Directors and executive officers has indicated his intent to vote all shares of Common Stock owned by him in favor of 
each item set forth herein. 
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The Board of Directors knows of no other matter to be presented at the meeting. If any other matter should be presented at the meeting upon which a 
vote may be taken, such shares represented by all Proxies received by the Board of Directors will be voted with respect thereto in accordance with the 
judgment of the persons named as attorney in the Proxies. 

Portion’s of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 containing audited consolidated financial statements 
and other information is being furnished with this Proxy Statement to all stockholders entitled to vote. The information extracted from the Annual 
Report on Form 10-K does not form any part of the Company’s proxy solicitation material. 

A complete copy of the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(without exhibits), can be obtained by stockholders (including beneficial holders of the Company’s Common Stock) without charge upon written 
request to MRV Communications, Inc., 20415 Nordhoff Street, Chatsworth, CA 91311, attn: Investor Relations.

This Proxy Statement and the accompanying Proxy were first mailed to Stockholders on or about November 12, 2002. 

ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF STOCKHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

The Company’s Proxy Statement, the accompanying President’s letter to our stockholders and the portions of the Annual Report on Form 10-K and 
the complete version of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K are available electronically. As an alternative to receiving printed copies of these 
or similar materials in future years, you may elect to receive and access them electronically. By signing up for electronic delivery, you can receive 
stockholder communications as soon as they are available without waiting for them to arrive in the mail. You can also reduce the number of bulky 
documents in your personal files, eliminate duplicate mailings, conserve natural resources and help us reduce our printing and mailing costs. 

If you are a beneficial owner of shares, to sign up for electronic delivery, please vote via the Internet at www.proxyvote.com and, when prompted, 
indicate that you agree to receive or access stockholder communications electronically in future years. If you are a record holder, you may enroll 
to receive stockholder communications electronically in the future by accessing the website www.investpower.com. If you have any questions about 
electronic delivery, please contact the Company’s Investor Relations Department at (818) 886-6782 or ir@mrv.com.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF 
CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 

The following table sets forth, as of the Record Date, the number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock owned by (i) each Director, (ii) all 
Directors, Director nominees and current executive officers as a group, (iii) each person known by the Company to own beneficially 5% or more of the 
Common Stock and (iv) the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the Company’s four other most highly compensated executive officers receiving 
more than $100,000 in total compensation for the year ended December 31, 2001 (collectively the “Named Executive Officers”). Except as otherwise 
indicated, the stockholders listed in the table below have sole voting and investment powers with respect to the shares indicated. 

                                           Common Stock
Name and address(1) of beneficial owner(2) or identity of group Number of Shares  Percentage Ownership
Shlomo Margalit  3,215,660  3.3%
Noam Lotan  1,495,424 (3) 1.6%
Edmund Glazer   298,000 (4) *
William R. Spivey  2,380,315 (8) 2.5%
Guy Avidan   48,000 (5) *
Igal Shidlovsky  127,200 (6) *
Guenter Jaensch  82,000 (5) *
Professor Daniel Tsui  36,000 (5) *
Professor Baruch Fischer  36,000 (5) *
All executive officers and directors as a group   5,040,284 (7) 5.1%
-------------------
*   Less than 1% 

(1)  Except as noted below, the address of each of the person listed is c/o MRV Communications, Inc., 20415 Nordhoff Street, Chatsworth, California, 
Chatsworth, CA 91311. 

(2) Pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, shares of Common Stock that an individual or group has a right to acquire within 
60 days pursuant to the exercise of options or warrants are deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of 
such individual or group, but are not deemed to be outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person shown 
in the table. 

(3) Includes 19,000 shares issuable pursuant to stock options exercisable within 60 days of November 1, 2002. 
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(4)  Mr. Glazer, MRV’s Vice President of Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer was killed on September 11, 2001 in the World Trade 
Center terrorist attacks. The number of shares reflected in the table includes of 30,000 shares held in his estate and options exercisable by his estate 
within 60 days of November 1, 2002. 

(5)  Consists of shares issuable upon exercise of stock options within 60 days of November 1, 2002. 
(6)  Includes 122,900 shares issuable upon exercise of stock options within 60 days of November 1, 2002.
(7)  Includes 343,900 shares issuable upon exercise of stock options within 60 days of November 1, 2002.
(8) Consists of shares issuable upon exercise of stock options with exercise prices ranging from $14.53 to $32.56 within 60 days of November 1, 2000. 

Assumes no change in the information since September 12, 2001, the date of Mr. Spivey’s termination with the company.

PROPOSAL NO. 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company are elected annually and hold office until the next annual meeting of stockholders and until their successors shall have 
been elected and shall have qualified. The number of directors currently fixed as the authorized number of directors of the Company is six. In general, 
vacancies and newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized number of directors may be filled by a majority vote of the 
Directors then in office. Shares represented by all Proxies received by the Board of Directors and not so marked as to withhold authority to vote for an 
individual Director, or for all Directors, will be voted (unless one or more nominees are unable or unwilling to serve) for the election of the nominees 
named below. The Board of Directors does not know of any reason why any such nominee should be unwilling to serve, but if such should be the case, 
proxies will be voted for the election of some other person or for fixing the number of Directors at a lesser number. 

The following table sets forth the year each nominee first became a Director and the positions presently held by each nominee with the Company. For 
information about ownership of the Company’s Common Stock by each nominee, see “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.” 

 Year Became a
Name Director Position
Noam Lotan (1) 1990 President, Chief Executive Officer, and Director
Shlomo Margalit (1) 1988 Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Technical Officer and Secretary
Dr. Igal Shidlovsky(2)(3) 1997 Director
Dr. Guenter Jaensch(2)(3) 1997 Director
Professor Daniel Tsui(3) 1999 Director
Professor Baruch Fischer 1999 Director

(1)  Member of the Executive Committee. 
(2)  Member of the Compensation Committee.
(3)  Member of the Audit Committee. Professor Tsui became a member of the Audit Committee in 2001.

Each director is elected for a period of one year and serves until the stockholders duly elect his successor. Officers are elected by and serve at the 
discretion of the Board of Directors. 

Noam Lotan, 50, has been the President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of the Company since May 1990 and became Chief Financial Officer of 
the Company in October 1993, in which position he served until June 1995. From March 1987 to January 1990, Mr. Lotan served as Managing Director 
of Fibronics (UK) Ltd., the United Kingdom subsidiary of Fibronics International Inc. (“Fibronics”), a manufacturer of fiber optic communication 
networks. The Company purchased the Fibronics business in September 1996. From January 1985 to March 1987, Mr. Lotan served as a Director of 
European Operations for Fibronics. Prior to such time, Mr. Lotan held a variety of sales and marketing positions with Fibronics and Hewlett-Packard. 
Mr. Lotan holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the Technion, the Israel Institute of Technology, and a Masters degree in 
Business Administration from INSEAD (the European Institute of Business Administration, Fontainebleau, France). 

Dr. Shlomo Margalit, 61, a founder of the Company, has been Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Technical Officer since the Company’s 
inception in July 1988. From May 1985 to July 1988, Dr. Margalit served as a founder and Vice President of Research and Development for LaserCom, 
Inc. (“LaserCom”), a manufacturer of semiconductor lasers. From 1982 to 1985, Dr. Margalit served as a Senior Research Associate at the California 
Institute of Technology (“Caltech”), and from 1976 to 1982, a Visiting Associate at Caltech. From 1972 to 1982, Dr. Margalit served as a faculty 
member and Associate Professor at the Technion. During his tenure at the Technion, Dr. Margalit was awarded the “Israel Defense” prize for his work 
in developing infrared detectors for heat guided missiles and the David Ben Aharon Award for Novel Applied Research. Dr. Margalit holds a Bachelor 
of Science degree, a Masters degree and a Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering from the Technion. 

Dr. Igal Shidlovsky, 66, became a Director of the Company in May 1997. Dr. Shidlovsky serves as Managing Director of Global Technologies, an 
investment and consulting organization, which he founded in 1994. He has extensive management and consulting experience with international 
companies and start up technology companies. From 1982 to 1991, Dr. Shidlovsky was a Director of Sentex Sensing Technologies. Dr. Shidlovsky held 
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several executive positions including Vice President Corporate Development at Siemens Pacesetter, a division of Siemens AG Medical Group, Director of 
Strategic Planning and Technology Utilization, and Director of the Microelectronics Department at Siemens Corporate Research. From 1969 to 1982 he 
was with RCA Laboratories, a leading electronic R&D organization. Dr. Shidlovsky holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Chemistry from the Technion 
and Master and Ph.D. degrees from the Hebrew University in Israel. Dr. Shidlovsky became a director of Luminent, Inc., MRV’s 92.3% publicly traded 
subsidiary in September 2001.

Dr. Guenter Jaensch, 64, became a Director of the Company in December 1997. Dr. Jaensch serves as President of Jaensch Enterprises, a firm engaged in 
management and project consulting, and serves as Chairman of the Board for Biophan Technologies, Inc. For over 20 years, he held executive positions 
with Siemens or its subsidiaries in Europe and the United States. Among his assignments were service as President of Siemens Communications Systems, 
Inc.; President and Chairman of Siemens Corporate Research and Support, Inc.; Chairman and Chief Executive Officer at Siemens Pacesetter, Inc.; and 
head of the Cardiac Arrhythmia Division of Siemens AG Medical Group. Dr. Jaensch also served as Director of Siemens Accounting and Budgeting 
operations and as controller of Siemens Data Processing Group. Dr. Jaensch holds a Masters degree in Business Administration and Ph.D. degree in 

Business and Finance from the University of Frankfurt; he also taught business for three years at the University of Frankfurt. 

Professor Daniel Tsui, 63, is the Arthur Le Grand Doty Professor of Electrical Engineering at Princeton University and was awarded the 1998 Nobel 
prize in Physics for the discovery and explanation of the fractional quantum Hall effect. Professor Tsui was a recipient of the American Physical Society 
1984 Buckley Prize, the 1998 Benjamin Franklin Medal and was elected to the National Academy of Sciences. He is a fellow of the American Physical 
Society and the American Association for the Advancement of Science. He is currently engaged in research activity relating to properties of thin films 
and microstructures of semiconductors and solid state physics. He received his Ph.D. in physics from the University of Chicago in 1967 and for 13 years 
was with Bell Laboratories before joining Princeton University, where he spent the last 20 years. 

Professor Baruch Fischer, 51, currently serves as Dean of the Electrical Engineering Faculty at the Technion. Professor Fischer’s current Research 
Activities include solid state devices, lasers and optical amplifiers; WDM technology; fiber gratings; “all optical” networks; non-linear effect in fiber, 
wave mixing; and optical computing, optical data storage and optical image processing. He has authored or co-authored approximately 180 papers 
and holds several patents in the field of optics and opto-electronics. He received his Ph.D. from Bar-Ilan University, Israel in 1980. He subsequently 
became a Post-Doctorate Fellow at CalTech and joined the faculty of the Technion in 1983. 

None of the persons nominated to serve as Directors of the Company are related by blood, marriage or adoption to any of the Company’s Directors 
or executive officers. The Board of Directors met four times during 2001, including telephonic meetings Each of the Directors attended [all/at least 75 
percent of the] meetings of the Board of Directors and the committees on which he served during the year ended December 31, 2001. 

The Compensation Committee, composed of Drs. Shidlovsky and Jaensch, held four meetings during 2001. The Compensation Committee’s functions 
include making recommendations to the Board of Directors concerning the compensation of officers and employees. The Company does not have a 
standing nominating committee of the Board of Directors or a committee performing similar functions. 

The Executive Committee, which, during 2001, consisted of Mr. Lotan and Dr. Margalit held four meetings during 2001. The Executive Committee 
is empowered to take any action that the Board of Directors is authorized to act upon, with the exception of the issuance of stock, the sale of all or 
substantially all of the Company’s assets and other significant corporate transactions.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth a summary of all compensation paid by the Company to its Chief Executive Officer and for each of its other executive 
officers whose total annual salary and bonus exceeded $100,000 (the “Named Executive Officers”) during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001: 

    Long-term 
    Compensation 
    Securities  
    Underlying - All other
 Year Salary Bonus Options (#) Compensation
Noam Lotan 2001 $100,000 $    -- 98,000 $-
President and Chief Executive Officer 2000 $100,000 $    -- -- --
 1999 $100,000 $    -- -- --
     
Shlomo Margalit 2001 $110,000 $    -- -- --
Chairman of the Board of Directors, 2000 $110,000 $    -- -- --
  Chief Technical Officer and Secretary 1999 $110,000 $    -- -- --
     
Edmund Glazer(1) 2001 $140,000 $    -- 130,000 $--
Vice President of Finance and  2000 $140,000 $    -- 40,000 --
  Administration and Chief Financial Officer 1999 $140,000 $    -- 60,000 --
     
William R Spivey(2) 2001 $199,574(3) $90,000 2,064,000(4) $400,000(5)
President and Chief Executive Officer 2000 $138,000 $90,000 316,315 $48,682(6)
  of Luminent, Inc 1999 N/A N/A N/A N/A
     
Guy Avidan 2001 $125,000 $    -- -- $
Vice President and General Manager, 2000 $125,000 $39,000 -- --
  MRV International 1999 $102,000 $39,000 -- --
---------------------
(1)   Mr. Glazer was killed in the air crash of American Airlines Flight 11 into North Tower of the World Trade Center on September 11, 2001. The 

table includes salary paid and options granted to Mr. Glazer’s wife following his death.
(2)   Dr. Spivey joined Luminent in July 2000 and resigned in September 2001. 
(3)   Consists of regular salary of $177,115, vacation pay of $19,924 and payment for personal time of $2,535.
(4)   In connection with the short-form merger of Luminent, which was completed on December 28, 2001, MRV agreed to assume the outstanding 

options to purchase shares of Luminent, adjusted for the exchange ration of 0.43 of a share of MRV common stock for each outstanding share 
of Luminent comment stock MRV did not own prior to the merger. The options reflected in the table for Dr. Spivey for 2001 are the number of 
MRV shares issuable to Dr. Spivey as the result of MRV assumption of Dr. Spivey’s outstanding Luminent options on December 28, 2001.

(5)   Consists of severance compensation paid in 2001.
(6)   Consists of a reimbursement of legal fees Dr. Spivey incurred in 2000 in connection with the negotiation of his employment contract. 
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Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year 
The following table provides certain information regarding stock option grants made to the Named Executive Officers in the year ended December 31, 2001. 

  Percent 
 Number of of total                   Potential realizable value
 securities options                 at assumed annual rate
 underlying granted to                 of stock appreciation
 options employees Exercise Expiration                for option term
Name granted in 2001 price ($/sh) Date 5% (1) 10% (1)
Noam Lotan 18,000  1.3  $        12.00  1/8/2007 $       73,461 $     166,657
  80,000  5.9 $          2.70  9/20/2007 $       73,461 $     166,657
Shlomo Margalit -- -- -- -- -- --
Edmund Glazer(2) 20,000  1.5  $        12.00  9/12/2004  $       47,231  $     101,057 
  30,000  2.2 $          5.38  9/12/2004  $       29,561   $       62,899
  80,000  (2)  $          2.70  9/12/2004  $       27,392  $       56,888 
William R. Spivey  2,064,000  (3) $14.534883 9/11/2003 (4) (4)
Guy Avidan -- -- -- -- -- --

--------------
(1) The dollar amounts under these columns are the result of calculations assuming the price of MRV’s common stock on the date of the grant of the 

option (or, in the case of Dr. Spivey, on December 28, 2001, when MRV agreed to assume outstanding Luminent options by converting them into 
in options to purchase MRV common stock adjusted for the 0.43 exchange ratio) increases at the hypothetical 5% and 10% rates set by the SEC 
for the term of the option. Neither the amounts reflected nor the rates applied are intended to forecast possible future appreciation, if any, of the 
Company’s stock price. 

(2) Mr. Glazer was killed on September 11, 2001. The table includes options granted to Mr. Glazer’s wife following his death. Options reflected for Mr. 
Glazer at December 31, 2001 are beneficially owned by his estate or wife. Options granted to Mrs. Glazer after Mr. Glazer’s death are not included 
in the calculation of total options granted to MRV employees during 2001.

(3) In connection with the short-form merger of Luminent, which was completed on December 28, 2001, MRV agreed to assume the outstanding 
options to purchase shares of Luminent, adjusted for the exchange ration of 0.43 of a share of MRV common stock for each outstanding share of 
Luminent comment stock MRV did not own prior to the merger. Accordingly, these options were not part of the total options granted to MRV 
employees during 2001.

(4) The potential realizable value of these options, calculated by assuming that the market price of MRV’s common stock on December 28, 2001 (the 
date MRV assumed Dr. Spivey’s Luminent options) appreciates at the 5% and 10% rates set by the SEC for the term of the options, minus the 
exercise price of these options, is less than zero.

Fiscal Year End Option Values 
No options were exercised by any of the Named Executive Officers during the year ended December 31, 2001. The following table provides certain 
information concerning MRV stock options and held by the named the Named Executive Officers at December 31, 2001.

 
  Number of shares        
  underlying unexercised   Value of unexercised
  options at   in-the money options at
  December 31, 2001   December 31, 2001 (1)
 Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexercisable
Noam Lotan 12,000  98,000  $       21,540  $       137,600 
Shlomo Margalit -     -    -      -   
Edmund Glazer (2) 268,000  -    $      313,510   $               -   
William R. Spivey 2,380,315   -     -      -   
Guy Avidan 36,000  24,000  $       64,620   $        43,080

-----------------
(1) Based on difference between the closing price of MRV common stock on December 31, 2001 and the exercise price. 
(2) Mr. Glazer was killed on September 11, 2001. The table includes options granted to Mr. Glazer’s wife following his death. Options reflected for Mr. 

Glazer at December 31, 2001 are beneficially owned by his estate or wife.
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Employment Agreements 
In March 1992, MRV entered into three-year employment agreements with Mr. Lotan and Dr. Margalit. Upon expiration, these agreements 
automatically renew for one-year terms unless either party terminates them by giving the other three months’ notice of non-renewal prior to the 
expiration of the current term. Pursuant to the agreements, Mr. Lotan serves as President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of MRV and Dr. 
Margalit serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief Technical Officer and Secretary. Mr. Lotan and Dr. Margalit receive base annual salaries of 
$100,000 and $110,000, respectively, and each is entitled to receive a bonus determined and payable at the discretion of the board of directors upon the 
recommendation of the Compensation Committee of the Board. Recommendations with respect to bonus levels are based on achievement of specified 
goals, such as new product introductions, profitability levels, revenue goals, market expansion and other criteria as established by the Compensation 
Committee. Effective January 1, 2002, Mr. Lotan’s salary was increased to $150,000 per year. 

In July 2000, MRV and its subsidiary, Luminent, entered into a four-year employment agreement with Dr. William R. Spivey, Luminent’s former 
President and Chief Executive Officer. Under the agreement, Luminent agreed to pay to Dr. Spivey an annual salary of $300,000 with a bonus targeted 
at $75,000 for 2000 and at $150,000 for the following years as determined at the discretion of our board of directors. MRV granted Dr. Spivey an option 
to purchase 316,315 shares of MRV common stock exercisable at $32.56 per share for five years. Luminent granted to Dr. Spivey an option to purchase 
4,800,000 shares of Luminent common stock at an exercise price of $6.25 per share. Dr. Spivey’s option to purchase MRV common stock was fully 
exercisable as of the date of grant, and his option to purchase Luminent common stock vested in annual installments of 25%, beginning on July 11, 2000, 
provided, however, that in the event his employment was terminated other than for cause he was entitled to receive from the date of termination over a 
one year period an amount equal to two times the sum of his annual salary plus bonus and all of his unvested Luminent options will automatically vest 
and become exercisable. Dr. Spivey’s resignation on September 12, 2001 was considered by the parties to be a termination other than for cause under 
his employment agreement entitling him to the severance benefits of his employment agreement therefor. The salary and bonus portion of Dr. Spivey’s 
severance compensation totals $900,000, and is payable in 24 equal installments of $37,500 each beginning on or about October 1, 2001, in accordance 
with the payroll cycles of Luminent and MRV and continuing through September, 2002. As a consequence of Dr. Spivey’s resignation, his MRV and 
Luminent options are now exercisable through September 11, 2003. On December 28, 2001, MRV completed the short-form merger of Luminent. . 
Former Luminent stockholders whose shares were converted in the merger are entitled to receive 0.43 of share of MRV common stock for each share 
of Luminent common stock owned at the time of the merger. In addition, MRV assumed in the merger options to purchase Luminent common stock 
that were outstanding and accordingly, Dr. Spivey’s Luminent stock options were converted into options to purchase 2,064,000 shares of MRV common 
stock, exercisable at $14.534883 per share until September 11, 2003.

Each officer also receives employee benefits, such as vacation, sick pay and insurance, in accordance with MRV’s policies, which are applicable to all 
employees. MRV has obtained, and is the beneficiary of, key man life insurance policies in the amount of $1,000,000 on the lives of each of Drs. Margalit 
and Mr. Lotan. All benefits under these policies will be payable to MRV upon the death of an insured. 

Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company’s directors and executive officers and persons who own more than 10% 
of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities, to file with the SEC initial reports of beneficial ownership and reports of changes in beneficial 
ownership of Common Stock and other equity securities of the Company. Directors, executive officers and 10% or greater stockholders are required by 
the SEC regulations to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. 

The Company believes, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports furnished to the Company, that each report required of the Company’s 
executive officers, directors and 10% or greater stockholders was duly and timely filed during the year ended December 31, 2001, except for a Form 3 
of Shay Gonen and one Form 4 by each of Shlomo Margalit and Noam Lotan. The Form 3 filed late by Mr. Gonen did not report any ownership of our 
shares but reported the grant of stock options exempt from Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act pursuant to Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act. The 
Form 4 filed late by Dr. Margalit reported four open market sales of an aggregate of 6,400 shares of our common stock during August 2001. The Form 
4 filed late by Mr. Lotan reported five open market sales of an aggregate of 3,150 shares of our common stock during August 2001.

Compensation of Outside Directors
Outside directors, i.e., directors who are not employees of MRV, receive cash compensation of $800 per month and $500 for each board of directors’ 
meeting attended, while serving as Directors. The following table sets forth stock options granted to our outside directors during 2001:

   No. shares
   covered
Name   by options
Dr. Igal Shidlovsky   67,300
Dr. Guenter Jaensch   60,000
Professor Daniel Tsui   60,000
Professor Baruch Fischer    60,000
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation 
None of the members of the Compensation Committee has ever been an officer or employee of MRV. None of MRV’s executive officers has served or 
currently serves on a board of directors or on a compensation committee of any other entity that had officers who served on MRV’s board of directors. 

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
In July 1998, MRV and Zaffire, Inc. (formerly New Access Communications, Inc.) entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement, under which MRV 
purchased for $950,000 shares of the capital stock of Zaffire equal to approximately 19% of the capital stock of Zaffire then outstanding and warrants 
to purchase additional capital stock of Zaffire, which, if fully exercised for an aggregate of $2,050,000, MRV would own an aggregate of approximately 
60% of Zaffire’s capital stock (when the shares purchased upon exercise of the warrants were added to MRV’s existing stake in Zaffire). The warrants 
were exercisable in two installments (provided the first installment was exercised) by July 1, 1999 and January 4, 1999, respectively. These warrants 
were fully exercised in 1999. In May 2000, MRV, along with 36 other accredited investors, and Zaffire entered into a Series C Preferred Stock Purchase 
Agreement under which MRV purchased for $5,000,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock of Zaffire. At September 30, 2001, MRV had an approximate 
22% ownership interest in Zaffire. 

Zaffire was engaged in the development of new products based on wave division multiplexing technology. . In July 2001, Zaffire reached an agreement 
with Centerpoint Broadband Technologies, Inc., under which Centerpoint agreed to acquire Zaffire in an all stock transaction. Centerpoint develops 
high capacity transport systems that maximize network performance for both optical and wireless networks. These highly scalable, dynamically flexible 
systems allow service providers advanced levels of bandwidth efficiency, capacity and high service velocity. The Centerpoint / Zaffire acquisition was 
completed in October 2001.  Dr. Near Margalit was the Chairman of the Board and Chief Technical Officer of Zaffire and a principal stockholder of it 
and became Chief Technical Officer of Centerpoint following its acquisition of Zaffire. Dr. Near Margalit is the son of Dr. Shlomo Margalit, a principal 
stockholder of MRV and MRV’s Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Technical Officer. At December 31, 2001, MRV owned less than 10% 
of Centerpoint.

From November 9, 2001, when it completed its initial public offering,  through December 28, 2001, when MRV completed a short form merger, 
approximately 7.7% of the outstanding capital stock of Luminent was owned by the publicly held. During this period and prior to it, divisions and 
subsidiaries of MRV were customers of Luminent and purchase substantial quantities of Luminent’s fiber optic components. These customers accounted 
for Luminent sales of $2.5 million during 1999, $4.9 million during the year ended December 31, 2000 and $5.7 million during the year ended December 
31, 2001. At December 31, 2000, using cash generated from operations Luminent had repaid approximately $6.5 million to MRV for interest-free 
advances Luminent made to MRV to cover payroll and other operating expenses. At September 30, 2001, Luminent had incurred $6.2 million in 
estimated income tax liability and $1.1 million in transitional services due MRV. The transitional services related substantially to Luminent’s portion 
of group insurance coverages. In December 2001, Luminent repaid these amounts totaling $7.3 million in full. Further, MRV repaid $4.4 million in 
December 2001 for product sales by Luminent to divisions and subsidiaries of MRV. Like other customers, sales by Luminent to MRV-related customers 
are based on purchase orders and none of MRV or its companies has any long long-term arrangements with Luminent regarding purchases. 

For the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, intercompany transactions between Luminent and divisions and subsidiaries of MRV 
consisted of the following (in thousands): 

     Year ended December 31,
 1998 1999 2000
Sales to MRV and its affiliates  $    2,104   $    2,503   $     4,878
Operating expenses    7,218     9,512    14,213 
Fair value of acquisitions --           250      440,628 
Deferred stock compensation --  --   40,950 
Net cash advances (distributions) (1,232) 1,709 1,568
Equity of MRV Communications, Inc   $   8,090 $ 13,974   $ 502,237

In preparation for Luminent’s separation from MRV prior to its initial public offering, Luminent entered into various agreements related to interim and 
ongoing relationships with MRV. These agreements provided for transitional services and support in the areas of data processing and telecommunications 
services (such as voice telecommunications and data transmission and information technology support services) for functions including accounting, 
financial management, tax, payroll, stockholder and public relations, legal, procurement and other administrative functions. Services were generally cost 
plus 5%, but could have increased to cost plus 10% if the services extended beyond a one-year period. Subsequent to the separation date, certain of these 
services were discontinued, including accounting, financial management, payroll, legal, procurement and other administrative functions. The transition 
period varied depending on the agreement but was generally one year. All amounts paid under these agreements have been discussed above. 

Although the fees provided for in the agreements were intended to represent the fair market value of these services, MRV and Luminent cannot assure 
that these fees necessarily reflected the costs of providing these services from unrelated third parties or of Luminent providing these services internally. 
However, Luminent and MRV believed that purchasing these services from MRV, and providing these services to Luminent, provided an efficient means 
of obtaining them during the transition period. With the merger, these agreements have been terminated. 
Through the completion of the short form merger of Luminent, Luminent became a wholly-owned subsidiary of MRV on December 28, 2001 and 
these agreements were effectively terminated on that date. Further, beginning in 2002, MRV no longer plans to report transactions between itself and 
its divisions and Luminent. 
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REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors formed the Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) in 1992 to set and administer the policies governing the Company’s 
compensation programs, including stock option plans. The Committee receives and evaluates information regarding compensation practices for 
comparable businesses in similar industries, and considers this information in determining base salaries, bonuses and stock-based compensation. The 
Committee is authorized to engage or employ such outside professional consultants or other services as in its discretion may be required to fulfill its 
responsibilities. The Committee also discusses and considers executive compensation matters and makes decisions thereon. 

The Company’s compensation policies are structured to link the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Named Executive Officers and other 
executives of the Company with corporate performance. In March 1992, Mr. Lotan and Drs. Margalit entered into three-year employment agreements, 
which, upon expiration automatically renew for one-year terms unless either party terminates them by giving the other three months’ notice of non-
renewal prior to the expiration of the current term. Through the establishment of compensation programs and employment agreements, the Company 
has attempted to align the financial interests of its executives with the results of the Company’s performance, which is designed to put the Company in 
a competitive position regarding executive compensation and to ensure corporate performance, which will then enhance stockholder value. 

The Company’s executive compensation philosophy is to set base salaries by referring to those of comparable businesses, and then to provide performance-
based variable compensation, such as bonuses, as determined by the Compensation Committee according to factors such as the Company’s earnings 
as well as value received by stockholders. This philosophy allows total compensation to fluctuate from year to year. As a result, the Named Executive 
Officers’ actual compensation levels in any particular year may be above or below those of the Company’s competitors, depending upon the evaluation 
of the compensation factors described above by the Compensation Committee. 

In line with the Company’s overall compensation program and the annual objectives set by the Committee, the Company’s executive officers have a high 
percentage of their total compensation at risk dependent upon the Company’s financial performance and other factors as considered by the Committee. 
The base compensation for 1999, 2000 and 2001 for Mr. Lotan and Dr. Margalit was determined in 1992, based upon employment agreements entered 
into by and between the Company and such executives. See “Employment Agreements.” The base compensation with Mr. Glazer was determined 
through negotiations between the Company and him at the time Mr. Glazer agreed to relocate to the Company’s facilities in Massachusetts and was 
based on Mr. Glazer’s prior compensation adjusted for the increase in the cost of living resulting from the relocation. The base compensation with Dr. 
Spivey was determined through negotiations between the Company and him in July 2000 at the time the Company was recruiting Dr. Spivey to join 
Luminent as its President and Chief Executive Officer. The base compensation with Mr. Avidan was determined through negotiations between the 
Company and him at the time Mr. Avidan was promoted to and assumed the responsibilities as Chief Executive Officer and President of Optical Access, 
the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, and was based on his prior compensation adjusted for the increase in his responsibilities.

To the extent readily determinable and as one of the factors in its consideration of compensation matters, the Committee considers the anticipated tax 
treatment to the Company and to the executives of various types of compensation. Some types of compensation and their deductibility depend upon 
the timing of an executive’s vesting or exercise of previously granted rights. Further, interpretations of and changes in the tax laws also affect the 
deductibility of compensation. To the extent reasonably practicable and to the extent it is within the Committee’s control, the Committee intends to 
limit executive compensation in ordinary circumstances to that deductible under Section 162(m) of the Internal revenue Code of 1986, as amended. In 
doing so, the Committee may utilize alternatives (such deferring compensation) for qualifying executive compensation for deductibility and may rely on 
grand fathering provisions with respect to existing contractual commitments. 

The Committee believes that its overall executive compensation program has been successful in providing competitive compensation appropriate to attract 
and retain highly qualified executives and also to encourage increased performance from the executive group, which should increase stockholder value. 

Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors

Igal Shidlovsky      Guenter Jaensch 
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee oversees the Company’s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board of Directors. Management has the primary responsibility 
for the Company’s financial statements and the overall reporting process, including the Company’s system of financial controls. In fulfilling its oversight 
responsibilities during 2001, the Committee periodically: 

 • reviewed the unaudited and audited financial statements with management and the Company’s independent auditors during 2001, Arthur 
                 Andersen LLP, 

 • discussed the accounting principles, significant assumptions, estimates and matters of judgment used in preparing the financial statements 
                 with management and Arthur Andersen, 
 
 • reviewed the Company’s financial controls and financial reporting process, and 

 • reviewed significant financial reporting issues and practices, including changes in accounting principles and disclosure practices. 

The Committee also reviewed with Arthur Andersen, who was responsible in 2001 for expressing an opinion on the conformity of the audited financial 
statements with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, their judgment as to the quality, and not just the acceptability, of the 
Company’s accounting principles and such other matters as are required to be discussed with the Committee under accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States. The Committee periodically met with Arthur Andersen to discuss the results of their examinations, their evaluations of 
the Company’s internal controls and the overall quality of the Company’s financial reporting. 

In addition, the Committee discussed with Arthur Andersen their independence from management and the Company including the matters in the written 
disclosures required by the Independence Standards Board and discussed with Arthur Andersen any matters required to be discussed by Statement on 
Auditing Standards No. 61 (Communications with Audit Committees). The Committee also considered the compatibility of Arthur Andersen’s non-
audit services (principally tax advisory services) with the standards for auditors’ independence. The Committee discussed with Arthur Andersen the 
overall scope and plans for their audit. 

The Directors who serve on the Committee are all “independent” for purposes of the rules of the Nasdaq Stock Market. During 2001, the committee 
met four times, with all members of the committee during 2001 in attendance at each meeting. 

In reliance on the reviews and discussions referred to above and representations by management that the financial statements were prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, the Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included 
in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001. In 2001, the Committee also recommended to the Board of Directors, 
subject to stockholder approval, the selection of Arthur Andersen LLP as the Company’s independent auditors for the year ending December 31, 2002. 
However, in June 2002, the Committee reconsider its decision in 2001 and recommended to the Board of Directors, subject to stockholder approval, the 
selection of Ernst & Young as the Company’s independent auditors for the year ending December 31, 2002.

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors

Igal Shidlovsky       Guenter Jaensch
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STOCKHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE PRESENTATION

The following chart shows the value of an investment of $100 on December 31, 1996 in cash of (i) the Company’s Common Stock, (ii) The Nasdaq Stock 
Market Index-US, (iii) an index based on companies in a group of companies in the Company’s industry (JP Morgan H& Q Technology Index). 

   Cumulative Total Return 
 12/96 12/97 12/98 12/99 12/00 12/01
MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 100.00 109.77 28.45 289.08 122.99 38.99
NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.S.) 100.00 122.48 172.68 320.89 193.01 153.15
JP MORGAN H & Q TECHNOLOGY 100.00 117.24 182.36 407.27 263.28 181.99

PROPOSAL NO. 2

RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

The persons named in the enclosed Proxy will vote to ratify the selection of Ernst & Young LLP (“Ernst & Young”) as independent public accountants 
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2002 unless otherwise directed by stockholders. A representative of Ernst & Young is expected to be present at 
the meeting of stockholders, and will have the opportunity to make a statement and answer questions from stockholders if he or she so desires. 

Vote Required
The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast is required for approval of this proposal. In the event ratification by the stockholders of the 
appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s independent public accountants is not obtained, the Board of Directors will reconsider such 
appointment. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF ERNST & 
YOUNG LLP AS THE COMPANY’S INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2002.

Change of Independent Accountants
Arthur Andersen LLP (“Arthur Andersen”) served as the Company’s independent auditors since 1992. On June 17, 2002, the Board of Directors of 
the Company determined, upon the recommendation of its audit committee, to appoint Ernst & Young LLP (“Ernst & Young”) as the Company’s 
independent public accountants, replacing Arthur Andersen. The Company dismissed Arthur Andersen on the same date. This determination followed 
the Company’s decision to seek proposals from independent public accountants to audit the financial statements of the Company.
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The audit reports of Arthur Andersen on the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 
did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor were they qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles.

During the two most recent fiscal years of the Company ended December 31, 2001 and the subsequent interim period through June 17, 2002, there 
were no disagreements between the Company and Arthur Andersen on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, 
or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to Arthur Andersen satisfaction, would have caused Arthur Andersen to make 
reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with its reports.

None of the reportable events described under Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K occurred within the two most recent fiscal years of the Company 
ended December 31, 2001 and the subsequent interim period through June 17, 2002.

During the two most recent fiscal years of the Company ended December 31, 2001 and the subsequent interim period to June 17, 2002, the Company 
did not consult with Ernst & Young regarding any of the matters or events set forth in Item 304(a)(2)(i) and (ii) of Regulation S-K.

The Company provided Arthur Andersen and Ernst & Young a copy of the foregoing disclosures. The response of Arthur Andersen stating their 
agreement with paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 of this section was included as an Exhibit on Form 8-K, which was filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on June 18, 2002.

Audit Fees
The aggregate fees billed by the Company to Arthur Andersen during fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 for the audit of the Company’s annual 
financial statements and for the review of the financial statements included in the Company’s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q totaled $1.1 million.

Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees
In 2001, Arthur Andersen billed no fees to the Company for services for financial information systems design and implementation.  

All Other Fees
The aggregate fees billed to the Company by Arthur Andersen for services rendered to the Company during 2001, other than the services described 
above under “Audit Fees” and “Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees” totaled $2.1 million. These services included various 
advisory services related principally to tax preparation, tax consultation and various registration statements.

The Audit Committee considered and determined that the provision of the services other than the services described under “Audit Fees” was compatible 
with maintaining the independence of Arthur Andersen. 

STOCKHOLDERS PROPOSALS

Stockholders are hereby notified that if they wish a proposal to be included in the Company’s Proxy Statement and form of proxy relating to the 2002 
annual meeting of stockholders, they must deliver a written copy of their proposal no later than July 15, 2003. Proposals must comply with the proxy 
rules relating to stockholder proposals, in particular Rule 14a-8 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), in order to be included 
in the Company’s proxy materials. Stockholders who wish to submit a proposal for consideration at the Company’s 2002 annual meeting of stockholders, 
but who do not wish to submit the proposal for inclusion in the Company’s proxy statement pursuant to Rule 14a-8 under the Exchange Act, must 
deliver a written copy of their proposal no later than September 13, 2003. In either case, proposals should be delivered to MRV Communications, Inc., 
20415 Nordhoff Street, Chatsworth, California 91311, Attention: Secretary. To avoid controversy and establish timely receipt by the Company, it is 
suggested that stockholders send their proposals by certified mail return receipt requested. 

MISCELLANEOUS

Management does not know of any other matters that may come before the meeting. However, if any other matters are properly presented for the meeting, 
it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying Proxy to vote, or otherwise act, in accordance with their judgment on such matters. 

 By Order of the Board of Directors 

       
 
 Shlomo Margalit 
               Secretary 

November 12, 2002 
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November 1, 2002

To Our Stockholders:

2001 was another year of change for MRV and our industry.  While the telecommunications equipment industry is going through a (possibly prolonged) 
“down” cycle, we at MRV are devoting all of our efforts to continue the pace of innovation, keep our customers satisfied and control our expenses.  We 
have reacted to the downturn in our industry by changing the fundamental structure of the company from a technology holding company to an operating 
entity. We recently unified sales organizations, coordinated R&D activities and branded our products as MRV - all aimed at improving customer focus.  
We believe that by leveraging on our strengths in various product lines and geographies, MRV can grow, even in the current environment.  

MRV is a unique company that leverages our optical component technology to build intelligent optical network systems.  Our goal is to lead in 
implementing optical networks through our optical infrastructure products and optical components.  We provide intelligent network infrastructure 
elements for enterprise campus and metro networks.  Our integrated solutions include optical transport elements (using both fiber optics and Free Space 
Optics), metro Ethernet aggregation and remote presence management.  Some of the world’s largest metro Ethernet networks use MRV products for 
optical transport, Ethernet aggregation and IP termination.

Luminent, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary, is a leading manufacturer of optical components for metro and residential access - markets that have been 
less affected by the very severe downturn in long haul deployments.  Luminent’s components, which are sold to most network equipment vendors, also 
constitute building blocks for MRV’s products.  Luminent is focused on components for three key product segments: extended-reach long wavelength 
transceivers, metro access CWDM/DWDM, and deep fiber residential access (FTTX).  In each of these segments, Luminent is a top player due to its 
technology, products, and manufacturing capabilities, both in Taiwan and California. We have full ownership of the laser design and manufacturing 
processes and the ability to integrate lasers into transceivers and Fiber-to-the-Home modules.

Given where we are, the question is: What are the best ways to resume growth and generate positive cash flow, assuming that market conditions could 
stay the same for some time?   Our primary answer is to increase revenue and gross margin through innovation. We are readying several new products 
for introduction early next year. Our planned solution sets for network infrastructure are compelling, and at the same time, our optical components line 
is in full renewal.  The weak spending environment is providing a broad talent pool from which to recruit experienced engineering resources, and we have 
added some remarkable people, who are already contributing to MRV’s product line resurgence.  The second answer is to continue to reduce expenses.  
We are pursuing several programs, which, together with top-line improvements, are aimed at helping us achieve our growth and profitability goals.

The winners will be the companies that can manage through this downturn and continue to deliver improved results. 

We are proud of the way MRV is navigating through the storm. We are working the issues, sometimes seven days a week, and every day that passes, we 
get closer to meeting our ultimate goals of profitability and positive cash flow. We look forward to a better 2003 with a renewed focus and one MRV.  
We thank our employees worldwide for their dedication and hard work, and we thank you for your support.  We look forward to your continued 
participation in our future as we progress.

Respectfully submitted,

Noam Lotan
Director, President and CEO



22 23

Selected Portions of Annual Report
on Form 10-K for Year Ended

December 31, 2001 of
MRV Communications, Inc.



22 23

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

MRV’s common stock is traded in the over-the-counter market and has been included in the Nasdaq National Market since February 28, 1994 under 
the symbol “MRVC.” The following table sets forth the high and low closing sale prices of it common stock for the periods indicated as reported by 
the Nasdaq National Market. The prices have been adjusted to give retroactive effect to the two-for-one stock split of MRV’s common stock effected 
on May 11, 2000. 

 High Low
2000

First Quarter $  95.25 $  25.88
Second Quarter 67.25 23.44
Third Quarter 80.38 45.31
Fourth Quarter 49.25 11.06

2001

First Quarter $  21.38 $  6.22
Second Quarter 12.90 5.38
Third Quarter 8.79 2.43

Fourth Quarter 5.75 2.76

According to the records of MRV’s transfer agent, at March 12, 2002, MRV had 3,380 stockholders of record, which, management believes, held from 
approximately 55,000 beneficial holders. 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

The following selected statement of operations data for the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001 and the balance sheet data as of December 
31, 2000 and 2001 are derived from our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, included elsewhere herein, and are audited by Arthur 
Andersen LLP, independent public accountants, as set forth in their report included later in this Report. The selected statement of operations data 
for the two years in the period ended December 31, 1997 and the balance sheet data as of December 31, 1997, 1998 and 1999 were derived from our 
audited financial statements, which are not included in this Report. The following data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial statements of the Company, including the notes thereto, 
included elsewhere in this Report. 

Statements of Operations Data:           Year ended December 31,
 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
   (in thousands, except per share data)
Revenues, net $ 165,471 $ 264,075 $ 288,524 $ 319,394 $ 332,844
Cost of goods sold(1)(2)(4) 94,709 165,385 197,442 203,371 267,389
Research and development(1)(2) 13,093 25,817 35,319 74,078 94,813
Selling, general and administrative(1)(2) 26,993 53,852 67,859 124,700 150,674
Purchased technology in progress(3) -- 20,633 -- -- --
Restructuring costs(2) -- 15,671 -- -- 14,111
Amortization of goodwill
  and other intangibles 372 2,901 3,898 66,814 126,484
Operating income (loss) 30,304 (20,184) (15,994) (149,569) (320,627)
Other income (expense), net(2)(5) 1,901 4,339 322 (9,578) (22,777)
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes
  minority interests and extraordinary item 32,205 (15,845) (15,672) (159,147) (343,404)
Provision (benefit for) income taxes 9,474 5,707 (2,153) (5,398) 4,475
Minority interests (146) (1,345) 610 796 11,577
Gain on purchase of minority interest,
  net of tax -- -- -- -- 9,949
Gain on repurchase of convertible notes,
  net of tax -- 2,791 -- -- --
Net income (loss) $  22,585 $ (20,106) $ (12,909) $(152,953) $(326,353)

Net income (loss) per
  share -- Basic $    0.48 $   (0.38) $   (0.24) $   (2.33) $   (4.27)
Net income (loss) per
  share -- Diluted $    0.44 $   (0.38) $   (0.24) $   (2.33) $   (4.27)
Shares used in per share
  calculation --
  Basic 47,340 53,064 53,920 65,669 76,369
  Diluted 51,468 53,064 53,920 65,669 76,369

         At December 31
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
   SHEET DATA: 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
Cash and cash equivalents $   19,428 $   20,692 $   34,330 $  210,080 $  164,676
Working capital 111,559 115,318 106,425 366,752 175,966
Total assets 236,236 320,192 314,533 1,097,621 864,495
Total long-term liabilities 2,853 94,317 94,409 154,504 102,254
Stockholders’ equity 189,969 174,429 166,815 781,555 584,676

---------------
(footnotes on next page)
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(1) Includes amounts related to deferred stock compensation of: $8.3 million and $7.8 million in cost of goods sold; $13.3 million and $14.0 million 
in research and development expenses; and $38.4 million and $48.0 million in selling, general and administrative expenses for the years ended 
December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. 

(2)  Includes charges of $35.4 million, $14.1 million, and $16,000 presented in cost of sales, selling, general and administrative, and other income (expense), 
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2001, to write-down inventory, purchase commitments, asset impairment, workforce reduction, 
restructuring costs and other non-recurring items. These charges resulted from the lower demand for our products and pricing pressures stemming 
from the continuing downturn in the communications equipment industry generally and the optical components sector in particular. 

(3)  Purchased technology in progress and restructuring charges were incurred as a result of acquisitions. Purchased technology in progress for the year 
ended December 31, 1998, was in conjunction with the Xyplex acquisition. Restructuring costs during the year ended December 31, 1998, were 
associated with a plan adopted by MRV in March 1998, calling for the reduction of workforce, closing of certain facilities, elimination of particular 
product lines, settlement of distribution agreements and other costs. 

(4)  For the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1999, includes amounts relating to the write-down of discontinued products of $3.1 million and $13.8 
million, respectively. 

(5)  Interest expenses for the year ended December 31, 1997 was in connection with the private placement of $30.0 million principal amount of notes, 
the proceeds from which MRV used to finance the cash portion of the Fibronics acquisition in 1996. Interest expenses for the year ended December 
31, 1998 and 1999, were connected with the private placement of $100.0 million principal amount of 5% Convertible Subordinated Notes. See Note 
10 of notes to the consolidated financial statements of MRV included later in this Report. 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

This Report contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. The Company’s actual results could differ materially from those 
anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including those set forth in the following and elsewhere in this Report. The 
following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Report. 

OVERVIEW 

We create, acquire, finance and operate companies, and through them, design, develop, manufacture and market products, which enable high-speed 
broadband communications. We concentrate on companies and products devoted to optical components and network infrastructure systems. We have 
leveraged our early experience in fiber optic technology into a number of well-focused operating units specializing in advanced fiber optic components, 
switching, routing, and wireless optical transmission systems which we have created, financed or acquired. 

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 were $332.8 million, compared to $319.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, an increase of 
4%. However we reported a net loss of $326.4 million and $153.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. A significant 
portion of these losses were due to the amortization of goodwill and other intangibles and deferred stock compensation related to our acquisitions in 
2000 and our employment arrangements with Luminent’s former President and its Chief Financial Officer. We will continue to record deferred stock 
compensation through 2004, relating to these acquisitions and Luminent’s employment arrangements with its executives. Effective January 1, 2002, the 
adoption of SFAS No. 142 will stop amortization of goodwill, however, it may require us to record impairment charges (see Recently Issued Accounting 
Standards, below). For the year ended December 31, 2001, we recorded goodwill and other intangible impairment charges of $14.2 million as the fair 
value of these assets was less than their carrying value (see Amortization of Goodwill and Other Intangibles, below). As a consequence of these charges, 
we do not expect to report net income in the foreseeable future. See discussion of the impact on the amortization of goodwill and other intangibles due 
to the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002 (see Recently Issued Accounting Standards, below). 

RECENT ACQUISITIONS 

During 2000, we completed several strategic acquisitions. These acquisitions were made to expand our product offerings, enhance our technological 
expertise and expand our manufacturing capabilities. During 2001 and 1999, we did not complete any material acquisitions. The table below summarizes 
the more notable acquisitions. 

  Form of Consideration and
Acquired Company Date of Acquisition Total Consideration Other Notes to Acquisition
Fiber Optic Communications, Inc. April 24, 2000 $309.7 million $48.6 million in cash and 5.4 million shares of common 
   stock and options issued; approximately 97% of capital 
   stock assumed; goodwill and other intangibles recorded of 
   $261.5 million; deferred stock compensation recorded of 
   $14.1 million

Jolt Limited May 1, 2000 $57.7 million 1.9 million shares of common stock and options issued; 
   100% of capital stock assumed; goodwill and other 
   intangibles recorded of $33.7 million; deferred stock 
   compensation recorded of $25.0 million

Quantum Optech Inc. July 12, 2000 $36.1 million 1.2 million shares of common stock and options issued; 
   100% of capital stock assumed; goodwill and other 
   intangibles recorded of $27.8 million; deferred stock 
   compensation recorded of $2.7 million

AstroTerra Corporation July 12, 2000 $160.3 million 2.4 million shares of common stock and options issued; 
   100% of capital stock assumed; goodwill and other 
   intangibles recorded of $108.4 million; deferred stock 
   compensation recorded of $50.0 million

Optronics International Corp. July 21, 2000 $123.9 million 4.2 million shares of common stock and options issued; 
   approximately 99% of capital stock assumed; goodwill and 
   other intangibles recorded of $99.4 million; deferred stock 
   compensation recorded of $13.4 million 
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Each of these acquisitions was accounted for using the purchase method and therefore, the results of operations of the acquired businesses have been 
included in our Consolidated Financial Statements from the respective dates of acquisition. Goodwill and other intangibles initially recorded from these 
acquisitions totaled $530.8 million. Net goodwill and other intangibles from these acquisitions totaled $367.4 million as of December 31, 2001. For the 
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, we recorded amortization of goodwill and other intangibles from these acquisitions of $102.8 million and 
$60.6 million, respectively. Effective January 1, 2002, we plan to implement Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and 
Other Intangible Assets” (see Recently Issued Accounting Standards, below). 

A portion of the purchase prices paid in connection with these acquisitions represented deferred stock compensation relating to options to purchase 
our common stock. The fair values of these options were $105.2 million and have been recorded as deferred stock compensation. Deferred stock 
compensation amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2001, relating to these stock options was $27.9 million, compared with $42.7 
million for the year ended December 31, 2000. We expect to incur additional deferred stock compensation relating to these acquisitions of approximately 
$34.6 million, which will be fully amortized by 2004. Deferred stock compensation is being amortized using the graded method using an estimated 
employment period of four years. 

Fiber Optic Communications, Quantum Optech and Optronics International were acquired and contributed to Luminent as part of our original plan 
to complete an initial public offering of our fiber optics components business and eventually spin-off this business to our stockholders. This plan was 
terminated in September 2001 when we decided not to complete the spin-off of Luminent and to effect a short form merger of Luminent with one of 
our wholly-owned subsidiaries and thereby eliminate public ownership of Luminent. Fiber Optic Communications develops and manufactures passive 
fiber optic components for wavelength division multiplexing. Quantum Optech specializes in developing and manufacturing optical thin film coating 
and filters for dense wavelength division multiplexing. Optronics focuses on developing and manufacturing high temperature semiconductor lasers, 
transceivers and detectors for optical networks. These acquisitions also provided additional manufacturing capabilities for future growth. 

AstroTerra and Jolt were acquired and contributed to our subsidiary, Optical Access, which focuses on optical wireless products that deliver high-
speed communications traffic to the so-called last mile portion of the communications network. AstroTerra develops and manufactures free-space 
optical wireless communication systems to connect data and telecommunications networks. Jolt develops and manufactures multi-port wireless optics 
communications equipment. These acquisitions provide strategic components and technology for Optical Access’ wireless optical solution. 

TRANSACTION WITH STOCK OF SUBSIDIARIES 

In November 2000, Luminent completed the initial public offering of its common stock, selling 12 million shares at $12.00 per share for net proceeds 
of approximately $132.3 million. Luminent designs, manufactures and sells a comprehensive line of fiber optic components that enable communications 
equipment manufacturers to provide optical networking equipment for the rapidly growing metropolitan and access segments of the communications 
networks. While we had planned to distribute all of our shares of Luminent common stock to our stockholders, unfavorable business and economic 
conditions in the fiber optic, data networking and telecommunications industries and the resulting adverse effects on the market prices of our common 
stock and Luminent common stock, caused us to determine to abandon the distribution and effect a short-form merger of Luminent into one of our 
wholly-owned subsidiaries, thereby eliminating public ownership of Luminent. This merger was completed on December 28, 2001. 

In July 2000, we and Luminent, entered into employment agreements with Luminent’s former President and Chief Executive Officer and its Vice 
President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer. The agreements provide for annual salaries, performance bonuses and combinations of stock options to 
purchase shares of our common stock and Luminent’s common stock. The stock options were granted to Luminent’s executives at exercise prices below 
market value, resulting in deferred stock compensation. Deferred stock compensation expense from these stock option grants reported for the years 
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, were $35.8 million and $54.2 million, respectively. We will incur additional deferred stock compensation expense 
of approximately $2.1 million through 2004. Luminent’s President and Chief Executive Officer resigned in September 2001. Dr. Spivey’s resignation 
was considered by the parties to be a termination other than for cause under his employment agreement entitling him to the severance benefits of his 
employment agreement, including payment over a one year period of an amount equal to two times the sum of his annual salary plus bonus and the 
vesting of all of his unvested Luminent options. Dr. Spivey’s MRV and Luminent stock options are now exercisable through September 11, 2003. During 
the year ended December 31, 2001, we recorded a charge of $1.0 million to reflect severance and other expenses and an immediate recognition of deferred 
stock compensation expense of $18.9 million. 

In October 2000, our wholly-owned subsidiary, Optical Access, filed a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the initial 
public offering of its common stock. This offering was not completed because of market conditions and in November 2001, Optical Access withdrew its 
registration statement. Due to the postponement of the offering prior to its withdrawal, we expensed all costs, approximately $1.1 million, of this offering in 
the second quarter of 2001. Optical Access designs, manufactures and markets an optical wireless solution that delivers high-speed communications traffic 
to the portion of the communications network commonly known as the last mile, which extends from the end user to the service provider’s central office. 
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RESTRUCTURING AND ONE-TIME CHARGES 

In the second quarter of 2001 when Luminent’s common stock was still publicly traded, Luminent’s management approved and implemented a 
restructuring plan and other actions in order to adjust operations and administration as a result of the dramatic slowdown in the communications 
equipment industry generally and the optical components sector in particular. Major actions primarily involved the reduction of facilities in the U.S. and 
in Taiwan, the reduction of workforce, the abandonment of certain assets, the cancellation and termination of purchase commitments and the write-
down of certain inventory. These actions are expected to realign Luminent’s business based on current and near term growth rates. All of these actions 
are expected to be completed in 2002. 

Restructuring Charges. During the year ended December 31, 2001, Luminent recorded restructuring charges totaling $20.3 million. Costs for 
restructuring activities are limited to either incremental costs that directly result from the restructuring activities and provide no future revenue 
generating benefit, or costs incurred under contractual obligations that existed before the restructuring plan and will continue with either no future 
revenue generating benefit or become a penalty incurred for termination of the obligation. 

Luminent identified a number of assets, including leased facilities and equipment that are no longer required due to current market conditions, operations 
and expected growth rates. The net facility costs related to closed and abandoned facilities of approximately $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 
2001, are primarily related to future obligations under operating leases. The total lease charge is net of approximately $3.7 million in expected sublease 
revenue on leases that Luminent cannot terminate. In connection with these closed and abandoned facilities, Luminent recorded asset impairment 
charges of $10.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 to write-down the value of equipment, consisting of leasehold improvements and certain 
manufacturing equipment. Due to the specialized nature of these assets, Luminent determined that they have minimal or no future benefit and recorded 
a provision reflecting the net book value relating to these assets. Purchase commitments of $6.2 million, recorded in cost of sales, for the year ended 
December 31, 2001 are to cancel or renegotiate outstanding contracts for materials and capital assets that are no longer required due to Luminent’s 
significantly reduced orders for optical components and sales projections over the next twelve months. 

Employee severance costs and related benefits of $1.3 million are associated with approximately 600 layoffs during the year ended December 31, 2001, 
bringing Luminent’s total workforce to approximately 1,100 employees as of December 31, 2001. Affected employees came from all divisions and areas 
of Luminent. The majority of affected employees were in the manufacturing group. 

As of December 31, 2001, the restructuring provision has been reduced by cash payments of $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 and 
non-cash related charges of $10.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, resulting in an ending liability balance of $8.7 million. Luminent expects 
to utilize most of the remaining balance in the year ending December 31, 2002. Luminent expects that it will spend approximately $8.7 million through 
the next two quarters to carry out the plan, which will be paid through cash and cash equivalents and through operating cash flows. Luminent began 
to realize savings related to the workforce reductions in late 2001 with estimated ongoing quarterly net savings of $2.4 million. In addition, Luminent 
anticipates that it will realize reduced depreciation charges of approximately $384,000 per quarter through December 2004 and $163,000 per quarter 
through December 2005 for facility costs. These savings are expected to be realized as reductions in cost of sales, research and development and selling, 
general and administrative expenses. 

A summary of the restructuring costs for the year ended December 31, 2001 consist of the following (in thousands): 

Original Additional  Remaining
 Provision Provision Utilized Balance
Exit costs
     Asset impairment $  9,544 $    897 $10,441 $      --
     Closed and abandoned facilities 1,125 1,280 88 2,317
     Purchase commitments 2,386 3,787 468 5,705
 13,055 5,964 10,997 8,022
Employee severance costs 1,281 -- 626 655
 $14,336 $ 5,964 $11,623 $ 8,677

A summary of the restructuring costs by line item for the year ended December 31, 2001 consist of the following (in thousands): 

 2001
Cost of sales $    6,173
Restructuring costs 14,111
Other income (expense) 16
 $  20,300
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One-Time Charges. As a result of the significant negative economic and industry trends impacting Luminent’s expected sales over the twelve months 
ending June 30, 2002, Luminent also recorded a one-time $29.2 million charge to write-down the remaining book value of certain inventory related to 
certain transceivers, duplexors, and triplexors that are previous generation products to its realizable value during the year ended December 31, 2001. 
The one-time charges to write-down inventory were subsequently reduced by $8.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 to reflect the sale of 
previously written-off items. 

MARKET CONDITIONS AND CURRENT OUTLOOK 

Macroeconomic factors, such as an economic slowdown in the U.S. and abroad, have detrimentally impacted demand for optical components. The 
unfavorable economic conditions and reduced capital spending has detrimentally affected sales to service providers, network equipment companies, 
e-commerce and Internet businesses, and the manufacturing industry in the United States during 2001 to date, and may continue to affect them for 
the remainder of 2002 and thereafter. Announcements by industry participants and observers indicate there is a slowdown in industry spending and 
participants are seeking to reduce existing inventories. 

As a result of the slowdown in the communications industry, we recorded in our consolidated results for the year ended December 31, 2001, charges 
relating to Luminent’s write-down of inventory, purchase commitments, asset impairment, workforce reduction, restructuring costs and other items. 
These charges, totaling $49.5 million, resulted from the lower demand for Luminent’s products and pricing pressures stemming from the continuing 
downturn in the communications equipment industry generally and the optical components sector in particular. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our statements of operations data expressed as a percentage of revenues.

 2001 2000 1999
Revenues, net   100% 100% 100%
Cost of goods sold 80 64 68
Research and development 28 23 12
Selling, general and administrative 45 39 24
Amortization of goodwill and 38 21 1
  other intangible
Restructuring costs 4 -- --
Operating income (loss) (96) (47) (6)
Other income (expense), net (7) (3) --
Income (loss) before provision (103) (50) (5)       
  for income taxes minority
  interests and extraordinary item
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1 (2) (1)
Minority interests 3 -- --
Gain on purchase of minority 3 -- --
  interest, net of tax
Net income (loss) (98)% (48)% (4)%

The following management discussion and analysis refers to and analyzes our results of operations into two segments as defined by our management. 
These two segments are Operating Entities and Development Stage Enterprises including all startups activities. 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2001 AND 2000 

Revenues, Net 

We generally recognize product revenue, net of sales discounts and allowances, when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery has occurred 
and all significant contractual obligations have been satisfied, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection is considered probable. Products are 
generally shipped “FOB shipping point” with no right of return. Sales with contingencies, such as right of return, rotation rights, conditional acceptance 
provisions and price protection, are rare and insignificant and are deferred until the contingencies have been satisfied or the contingent period has 
lapsed. We generally warrant our products against defects in materials and workmanship for one year. The estimated costs of warranty obligations and 
sales returns and other allowances are recognized at the time of revenue recognition based on contract terms and prior claims experience. Our major 
revenue-generating products consist of: optical passive and active components; switches and routers; remote device management; and network physical 
infrastructure equipment. Revenue generated through the sales of services and systems support has been insignificant. 
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Operating Entities. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001 increased $13.5 million, or 4%, to $332.8 million from $319.4 million for the 
year ended December 31, 2000. Revenue generated through our recent acquisitions for the year ended December 31, 2001 increased $21.7 million, 
or 56%, to $60.3 million from $38.6 million for the prior year. Revenue from our existing business generated $272.5 million and $280.8 million for 
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. This change represents a decrease of $8.3 million, or 3%, for the year ended December 
31, 2001. Revenue generated from our optical passive components increased $9.9 million, or 34%, over the prior year. This increase offsets decreases 
in revenue from our switch and routers, which decreased $6.1 million, or 8%. Revenue to the European Community and the Pacific Rim together 
increased $24.9 million, or 13%, for the current year. 

Development Stage Enterprises. No significant revenues were generated by these entities for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. 

Gross Profit 

Gross profit is equal to our revenues less our cost of goods sold. Our cost of goods sold includes materials, direct labor and overhead. Cost of 
inventory is determined by the first-in, first-out method. 

Operating Entities. Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $65.5 million, compared to gross profit of $116.0 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2000. Gross profit decreased $50.6 million, or 44%, for the year ended December 31, 2001 over the year ended December 31, 
2000. 

Our gross margins (defined as gross profit as a percentage of revenues) are generally affected by price changes over the life of the products and the 
overall mix of products sold. Higher gross margins are generally expected from new products and improved production efficiencies as a result of 
increased utilization. Conversely, prices for existing products generally will continue to decrease over their respective life cycles. 

Our gross margin decreased to 20% for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to gross margin of 36% for the year ended December 31, 
2000. The decrease in gross margin was partially attributed to a write-off of inventory and other charges of $35.4 million taken by Luminent during 
the year ended December 31, 2001. The gross margin decreases in the current year were also affected by reductions in inventory value to record 
inventory at the lower of cost or market at MRV’s networking and other operating subsidiaries. In addition, certain profitable, but low margin 
projects in Europe, contributed to the reduction in gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2001. Furthermore, our gross margin was 
affected by deferred compensation amortization charges of $7.8 million for the current year. Prior to Luminent’s restructuring and other one-time 
charges of $35.4 million additional reductions in inventory at other subsidiaries of $8.3 million and deferred stock compensation amortization of 
$7.8 million, gross margin would have been $117.0 million, or 35%. Prior to deferred stock compensation amortization of $8.3 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2000, gross margin would have been $124.3 million, or 39%. 

Development Stage Enterprises. No significant gross margins were produced by these entities for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001. 

Research and Development Expenses (R&D) 

R&D expenses increased 28%, to $94.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 from $74.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2000. 

Operating Entities. R&D expenses from our operating entities were $49.1 million, or 15% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001, as 
compared to $32.6 million, or 10% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2000. This represents an increase of $16.5 million, or 51%, for the 
year ended December 31, 2001. Excluding deferred stock compensation amortization charges of $14.0 million and $13.3 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively, R&D expenses would have increased by 82% to $35.1 million, or 11% of revenues, from $19.3 million, or 
6% of revenues, for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.  Development Stage Enterprises. R&D expenses of the development 
stage enterprises were $45.7 million, or 14% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001, as compared to $41.5 million, or 13% of revenues, 
for the year ended December 31, 2000. This represents a decrease of $4.2 million, or 10% of revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2001. 

Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) 

SG&A expenses increased 21% to $150.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to $124.7 million for the year ended December 31, 
2000. SG&A expenses were 45% of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2001 compared to 39% of revenues for the year ended December 31, 
2000. Prior to Luminent’s restructuring and other one-time charges of $14.1 million and deferred stock compensation amortization charges of $48.1 
million for the year ended December 31, 2001 and deferred stock compensation amortization charges of $38.4 million for the year ended December 
31, 2000, SG&A would have decreased 6% to $88.5 million from $86.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. As a 
percentage of revenue, SG&A prior to Luminent’s restructuring and other one-time charges and deferred stock compensation amortization expenses 
would have been 27% for the year ended December 31, 2001 and prior to deferred compensation amortization expenses would have been 30% for 
the year ended December 31, 2000. 
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Operating Entities. SG&A expenses increased 9% over prior year to $135.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. SG&A expenses were 41% 
and 39% of our revenue for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Prior to Luminent’s restructuring and other one-time charges 
of $14.1 million and deferred stock compensation amortization charges of $48.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 and deferred stock 
compensation amortization charges of $38.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, SG&A would have decreased 15% to $73.5 million for the 
year ended December 31, 2001, respectively, compared to $86.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. As a percentage of revenues, SG&A prior 
to Luminent’s restructuring and other one-time and deferred stock compensation charges would have been 22% for the year ended December 31, 2001 
compared to 27% for the year ended December 31, 2000. These decreases are mainly due to the reduction of overhead expenses. 

Development Stage Enterprises. The Development Stage Enterprises did not report SG&A expenses during the year ended December 31, 2000. During 
2001 these companies began to develop their administrative capabilities and reported $15.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. 
Amortization Of Goodwill and Other Intangibles 

Operating Entities. Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles increased to $126.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, from $66.8 
million for the year ended December 31, 2000. The increase of approximately $45.5 million was the result of the timing of our recent acquisitions, 
which occurred principally from April 24 to July 21, 2000, and an additional $14.2 million of impairment charges. The goodwill and other intangibles 
was considered impaired as the anticipated undiscounted cash flows from these assets was less than their carrying values. The remaining carrying value 
of goodwill and other intangibles was not impaired based on this analysis. This analysis requires us to use significant judgment and make assumptions 
regarding the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition. While we believe the carrying values are 
realizable based on our analysis, changes in the assumptions used in our cash flows models could have resulted in significantly different results (See 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements, below.). 

Development Stage Enterprises. No amortization of goodwill and other intangibles was recorded for these entities for the years ended December 31, 
2001 and 2000. 

 
Other Expense, Net 

In June 1998, we issued $100 million principal amount of 5% convertible subordinated notes due in June 2003. The notes were offered in a 144A private 
placement to qualified institutional investors at the stated amount, less a selling discount of 3%. In late 1998, we repurchased $10.0 million principal 
amount of these notes at a discount from the stated amount. We incurred $4.5 million in interest expense relating to the Notes during the year ended 
December 31, 2001 and 2000. 

The increase in other expense from $8.8 million to $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001 is primarily attributed to interest expense from 
our financing obligations, our share of losses from our unconsolidated subsidiaries of $7.8 millions and impairment charges of $9.2 million on our 
investments for the year ended December 31, 2001, partially offset by interest income and minority interest. As part of our asset realization evaluation, 
we determined that the carrying value of certain wireless BLECs (Building Local Exchange Carriers) and other investments, where we have less than a 
20% ownership stake, were impaired. Our share of losses from our unconsolidated subsidiaries was $7.3 for the year ended December 31, 2000. 

Gain on Purchase of Minority Interest, Net of Tax 

In September 2001, we announced our intention to reacquire Luminent’s 8% minority interest, established through Luminent’s November 2000 initial 
public offering, and merge Luminent back into MRV. The merger was completed in December 2001. We exchanged 0.43 shares of MRV common 
stock, or 5.2 million shares, for 12.0 million shares of Luminent common stock. Our common stock had a fair value of $16.9 million, based on the 
average market price of our common stock five days before and after the terms were determined. Consequently, we recorded an extraordinary gain 
from this merger of $9.9 million, net of tax, equal to the excess minority interest reduced over the fair value paid, net of our costs incurred to effect 
this merger. 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999 

Revenues, Net 

Operating Entities. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000 increased $30.9 million or 11% to $319.4 million from $288.5 million for the year 
ended December 31, 1999. Revenue generated through our recent acquisitions for the year ended December 31, 2000 was $38.6 million. No acquisitions 
were made during the year of 1999. Revenue from our existing business was $280.8 million and $288.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2000 
and 1999, respectively. This change represents a decrease of $7.7 million or 3% for the year ended December 31, 2000 due to a decrease of approximately 
$37.0 million or 27% due to MRV’s decision to discontinue the production and sale of LAN switches and remote device management products. MRV 
made this decision in order to focus on the emerging carrier and service providers’ market segment where the sales cycle is significantly greater than the 
enterprise networks market. This decrease was offset by the growth in the fiber optic components business of approximately $22.0 million due to the 
increase in market demand created by carrier equipment manufacturers. Our various other products substantially accounted for the remaining increase 
of approximately $7.0 million or 9% for the year ended December 31, 2000. 

Development Stage Enterprises. No significant revenues were generated by these entities for the years ended 2000 and 1999. 
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Gross Profit 

Operating Entities. Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2000 increased $24.9 million, or 27% to $116.0 million from $91.1 million for the year ended 
December 31, 1999. MRV’s gross margin (defined as gross profit as a percentage of revenues) increased to 36% for the year ended December 31, 2000 from 32% 
for the year ended December 31, 1999. Prior to deferred stock compensation amortization expense, MRV’s gross margin would have increased to $124.3 million or 
39% for the year ended December 31, 2000 compared to $91.1 million or 32% for the year ended December 31, 1999. MRV’s margins increased due to a favorable 
shift in product mix towards higher margin product lines, such as those for third generation wireless networks and other Internet infrastructure products. 
Development Stage Enterprises. No significant gross profits were generated by these entities for the years ended 2000 and 1999. 

Research and Development (R&D) 

R&D expenses increased $38.8 million or 110% to $74.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 from $35.3 million for the year ended December 31, 1999. 

Operating Entities. R&D expenses of the operating entities were $32.6 million or 10% of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000 as compared 
to $15.3 million or 5% of revenues for the year ended December 31, 1999. This represents an increase of $17.3 million or 113% for the year ended 
December 31, 2000. Prior to deferred stock compensation amortization expense of $21.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, R&D expenses 
would have been $11.0 million or 3% of revenues compared to $15.3 million or 5% of revenue. This represents a decrease of $4.3 million or 28% for the 
year ended December 31, 2000. 

Development Stage Enterprises. R&D expenses of the development stage enterprises increased by $21.5 million of 108% to $41.5 million or 13% of 
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000 compared to $20.0 million or 7% of revenues for the year ended December 31, 1999. MRV’s increased 
spending in R&D illustrates its commitment to continued product development and technological expansion. Additionally, R&D from MRV’s 
consolidated development stage enterprises continued to increase as those enterprises strive towards bringing new products to market. 

Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) 

Operating Entities. SG&A expenses increased $56.8 million, or 84%, to $124.7 million from $67.9 for the year ended December 31, 1999. SG&A 
expenses were 39% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000 compared to 24% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 1999. Prior to the 
amortization of deferred stock compensation of $30.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2000, SG&A expenses would have been $94.7 million 
or 30% of revenues. This represents an increase of $26.8 million or 39% for the year ended December 31, 2000 primarily as a result of MRV’s recent 
acquisitions. MRV also increased personnel and related costs in its operating entities during the year ended December 31, 2000. 

Development Stage Enterprises. The development stage enterprises did not report SG&A expenses during the years of 2000 and 1999 as their activities 
primarily involved the research development of products and they had yet to develop administrative and selling functions. 

Amortization of Goodwill and Other Intangibles 

Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles increased $62.9 million to $66.8 million from $3.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, 
respectively. Furthermore, as MRV continues to engage in strategic acquisitions, additional goodwill and other intangibles may be recorded. 

Other Expenses, Net 

MRV incurred $4.5 million in interest expense relating to the Notes for each year ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The increase in 
other expense is primarily attributed to MRV’s share of losses from its unconsolidated development stage enterprises of $7.3 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2000. For the year ended December 31, 1999, these entities were included in MRV’s consolidated statements of operations based on its 
ownership in those enterprises. The remaining components of other expense, principally represent interest income recognized from short-term and 
long-term investments. 

Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes 

The benefit for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2000 was $5.4 million, compared to $2.2 million for the year ended December 31, 1999. 
MRV’s income tax expense fluctuates primarily due to the tax jurisdictions where MRV currently has operating facilities and the varying tax rates in 
those jurisdictions. 
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QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The following tables set forth MRV’s unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations data for each of the eight quarters ended December 31, 
2001. These statements should be read in conjunction with MRV’s consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. 
MRV has prepared this unaudited consolidated information on a basis consistent with its audited consolidated financial statements, and in the opinion of its 
management, it reflects all normal recurring adjustments that MRV considers necessary for a fair presentation of its financial position and operating results for 
the quarters presented. You should not draw any conclusions about MRV’s future results from the operating results for any quarter. 

                                                                                                                    For the three months ended
                                        March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
 2000 2000 2000 2000 2001 2001 2001 2001
                                          (in thousands, except per share amounts)
                                          (unaudited)
Revenues, net $   65,072 $   73,935 $    82,720 $   97,667 $  100,104 $    89,530 $   69,730 $   73,480
Cost and expenses:
  Cost of goods sold 42,736 45,793 47,910 66,932 66,391 88,765 57,621 54,612
  Research and
  development 11,891 14,758 21,803 25,626 25,005 25,782 18,806 24,719
  Selling, general and
    administrative 16,028 26,467 52,699 29,506 38,412 31,777 49,528 30,959
  Restructuring expenses -- -- -- -- -- 11,934 1,724 453
    Amortization of
      goodwill and other
      intangibles -- 12,055 27,348 27,411 28,139 29,028 27,218 42,099
 70,655 99,073 149,760 149,475 157,947 187,286 155,398 152,840      
    Operating loss (5,583) (25,138) (67,040) (51,808) (57,843) (97,756) (85,668) (79,360)
Other expense, net (488) (1,190) (5,764) (2,136) (520) (2,373) (1,410) (18,474)
    Loss before
      benefit (provision)
      for income taxes,
      minority interest
      and extraordinary (6,071) (26,328) (72,804) (53,944) (58,363) (100,129) (87,078) (97,834)
(Provision) benefit for
  income taxes 494 (1,377) (1,005) 7,286 2,683 939 (6,215) (1,882)
Minority interest (287) (45) (570) 1,698 1,388 5,051 3,646 1,492
Gain on purchase or
  minority interest, net -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 9,949
  of tax
    Net loss $  (5,864) $ (27,750) $ (74,379) $ (44,960) $ (54,292) $ (94,139) $ (89,647) $ (88,275)
Basic and diluted income
  (loss) per share $    (0.10) $    (0.44) $    (1.06) $    (0.62) $    (0.73) $    (1.24) $    (1.16) $   (1.14)
Shares used in per share
  calculation -- Basic
  and diluted 56,850 62,764 70,122 72,768 74,370 76,111 77,404 77,545

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

In response to the SEC’s Release No. 33-8040, “Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Critical Accounting Policy,” we identified the most critical 
accounting principles upon which our financial status depends. We determined the critical principles considering accounting principles to be related to 
revenue recognition, inventory valuation and impairment of intangibles and other long-lived assets. We state these accounting policies in the Footnotes 
to our Consolidated Financial Statements and in relevant sections in this management’s discussion and analysis, including the Recently Issued Accounting 
Standards discussed below. 
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RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

The FASB recently approved two pronouncements: SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations and SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, 
which provide guidance on the accounting for business combinations to be accounted for using the purchase method. Under the new rules, goodwill will 
no longer be subject to amortization over its useful life. Rather, goodwill will be subject to at least an annual impairment assessment. This assessment is 
a fundamentally different two-step approach and is based on a comparison between a reporting unit’s fair value and its carrying value. Intangible assets 
have newly defined criteria and will be accounted for separately from goodwill and will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. We plan to adopt 
these pronouncements as of January 1, 2002. Upon the adoption of SFAS No. 142, we will no longer amortize goodwill and certain intangible assets. 
Under this new pronouncement, we will evaluate the carrying value of these assets and if necessary, we will record additional impairment charges. SFAS 
No. 142 represents a change in the methodology used to determine impairment in that it is more market focused. As of December 31, 2001, our common 
stock was trading at amounts significantly lower than our book value. As such, we anticipate recording, in the first quarter of 2002, impairment charges 
as a result of our depressed market valuations. Should market values dramatically improve during the first half of 2002, impairment losses, if any, could 
be reduced or eliminated. Furthermore, as we continue to engage in strategic acquisitions, we may record additional goodwill and other intangibles. 

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”. SFAS No. 143 requires entities to record the fair value 
of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which the obligation is incurred. When the liability is initially recorded, the entity capitalizes 
the cost by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period, and the 
capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. This statement is effective on January 1, 2003 with earlier application encouraged. We 
are currently reviewing this statement and have not yet determined its impact, if any on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. SFAS No. 144 requires that 
long-lived assets be measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or in discontinued 
operations. We will adopt this statement as of January 1, 2002 and are currently reviewing the statement to determine its impact, if any, on our financial 
position, results of operations or cash flows. 

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash were $220.7 million at December 31, 2001, a decrease of $63.3 million from cash, cash equivalents and restricted 
cash of $284.0 million at December 31, 2000. Working capital at December 31, 2001 was $176.0 million compared to $366.8 million at December 31, 
2000. Our ratio of current assets to current liabilities at December 31, 2001 was 2.0 to 1.0 compared to 4.3 to 1.0 at December 31, 2000. The decrease 
in working capital is substantially attributed to the cash requirements of our development stage enterprises and our consolidated net operating losses. As 
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, we did not have any “off-balance sheet” financing arrangements. 

Cash used in operating activities was $24.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to cash used in operating activities of $29.8 million 
for the year ended December 31, 2000. Cash used in operating activities is a result of our net operating loss of $326.4 million, adjusted for non-cash 
items such as depreciation and amortization and deferred stock compensation charges, and offset by cash generated from operating assets and liabilities. 
Cash used in operating activities were positively affected by decreased restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables, inventories and other 
assets and increases in accrued liabilities and deferred revenue, partially offset by decreases in accounts payable and income taxes payable, during the 
period. The decrease in inventory is primarily the result of inventory write-downs taken and lower of cost or market inventory adjustments. Decreases 
in accounts payable are the result of dramatic slowdown in the communications equipment industry, while increases accrued liabilities are the result of 
growth in our non-Luminent businesses. 

Cash flows used in investing activities were $53.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to cash provided by investing activities of 
$9.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Cash flows used in investing activities were the result of capital expenditures of $19.9 million and 
investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries of $33.6 million. Cash flows provided by investing activities for the prior period resulted from the net cash 
provided by the maturity of investments, offset by net cash used in for capital expenditures, purchases of investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries, and 
cash used for our recent acquisitions. 

Cash flows from financing activities were $31.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to cash provided in financing activities of $198.5 
million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Cash generated from financing activities was the result of proceeds received from the issuance of our 
common stock of $25.9 million and short-term borrowing of $39.0 million, offset by payments on short-term borrowings of $29.5 million, during the 
period. Cash flows provided by financing activities in the prior period represent the cash received through Luminent’s initial public offering, borrowings 
on our short-term and long-term obligations, the issuance of common stock, offset by payments on our short-term and long-term obligations. 

On November 10, 2000, Luminent completed the initial public offering of its common stock, selling 12.0 million shares at $12 per share. Their initial 
public offering raised net proceeds of approximately $132.3 million. In December 2001, we reacquired the minority interest of Luminent representing 
approximately 8% of Luminent’s outstanding common stock (See the discussion above and the Footnotes to our Consolidated Financial Statements for 
additional discussion). 
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In June 1998, we issued $100 million principal amount of 5% notes due in June 2003 in a private placement raising net proceeds of $96.4 million. The 
notes are convertible into our common stock at a conversion price of $13.52 per share (equivalent to a conversion rate of approximately 73.94 shares per 
$1,000 principal amount of notes), representing an initial conversion premium of 24%, for a total of approximately 7.4 million shares of our common 
stock. The notes bear interest at 5% per annum, which is payable semi-annually on June 15 and December 15 of each year. The notes have a five-year 
term and have been callable by us since June 15, 2001. The premiums payable to call these notes are 102% of the outstanding principal amount during 
the 12 months ending June 14, 2002 and 101% during the 12 months ending June 14, 2003, plus accrued interest through the date of redemption. During 
February and March 2002, we exchanged approximately 6.5 million shares of our common stock for approximately $24.6 million of our notes. 

The following table illustrates our total contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2001: 

                     Payments due by Period
Contractual  Less than                                
Obligations Total 1 Year 1 - 3 Years 4 - 5 Years After5 Years
Long-Term Obligations $ 61,097 $ 52,226 $  4,421 $  3,088 $  1,362 
Convertible
  subordinated notes(1) 89,646 -- 89,646 -- -- 
Unconditional 
  purchase obligations 9,921 8,508 1,042 304 67 
Operating leases 30,236 7,791 11,614 5,240 5,591 
Investments 10,560 4,130 4,320 2,110 -- 
Total contractual 
  cash obligations $201,460 $ 72,655 $111,043 $ 10,742 $  7,020 

(1)  Subsequent to December 31, 2001, MRV paid $53.2 million of current maturities of long term debt and its interest rate swap and retired approximately 
$24.6 million of its convertible subordinated notes through the exchange of approximately 6.5 million shares of its common stock therefor. 

Our total contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2001 were $201.5 million, of which, $72.7 million are due during the year ending December 
31, 2002. These total contractual cash obligations primarily consist of long-term financing obligations including our convertible subordinated notes, 
operating leases for our equipment and facilities, unconditional purchase obligations for necessary raw materials and funding commitments for certain 
development stage enterprises. Historically, these obligations have been satisfied through cash generated from our operations or other avenues (see 
discussion below) and we expect that this will continue to be the case. During February 2002, we paid $50.0 million in current maturities of long-term 
obligations and terminated our interest rate swap for $3.2 million. During February and March 2002, we exchanged approximately 6.5 million shares 
of our common stock for approximately $24.6 million. Giving pro forma effect to these payments and the shares-for-notes exchanges as if they had 
occurred on December 31, 2001, we reduced our total contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2001 to $123.7 million and our short-term 
obligations to $20.4 million. Although these obligations were scheduled to become due in 2003, we determined that there were substantial liquidity 
savings realizable by satisfying these obligations during the three months ending March 31, 2002. 

Our remaining short-term obligations of $20.4 million consist of $7.8 million for operating leases, $8.5 million for unconditional purchase obligations and 
$4.1 million for funding commitments for our development stage enterprises. Our operating entities are responsible for approximately $5.9 million, or 
76% of the operating leases, while our development stage enterprises are responsible for $1.9 million, or 24% of the operating leases. Our unconditional 
purchase obligations are to secure the necessary raw goods for production of our products. Our operating and development stage enterprises are 
responsible for 91% and 9% of total unconditional purchase obligations, respectively. As part of Luminent’s restructure plan (see our discussion above 
and the Footnotes to our Consolidated Financial Statements), $6.2 million in unconditional purchase obligations have been recorded as a liability and 
Luminent is in negotiations to cancel or renegotiate contracts that are no longer required due to its significantly reduced orders for optical components 
and sale projections. The remaining purchase commitments are part of our ordinary course of business. Finally, we will continue to fund our start-up 
activities that are complementary to our business strategy. 

Our remaining long-term obligations as of March 2002 of $103.3 million consist of $73.1 million of long-term financing obligations including our $65.0 
million in remaining convertible subordinated notes, $22.4 million in operating leases for our equipment and facilities, $1.4 million of unconditional 
purchase obligations and $6.4 million for funding commitments for certain development stage enterprises. As discussed above, subsequent December 
31, 2001, we exchanged approximately approximately 6.5 million shares of our common stock for approximately $24.6 million of our notes . Our notes 
are due in June 2003. Should the price of our common stock exceed the conversion price of the notes, or $13.52 per share, we would not be obligated 
to satisfy these amounts in cash, but rather with our common stock. Our remaining long-term financing obligations consist of financing obtained for 
capital expenditures and product expansion. Our operating leases expire at various dates through 2049. Our operating and development stage enterprises 
are responsible for 78% and 22% of the long-term operating lease commitments, respectively. 
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We believe that our cash on-hand and cash flows from operations will be sufficient to satisfy our working capital, capital expenditures and research 
and development requirements for at least the next 12 months. However, we may require or choose to obtain additional debt or equity financing in 
order to finance acquisitions or other investments in our business. We will continue to devote resources for expansion and other business requirements. 
Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including acquisitions, our rate of revenue growth, the timing and extent of spending to 
support development of new products and expansion of sales and marketing, the timing of new product introductions and enhancements to existing 
products and market acceptance of our products. Additionally, following the merger with Luminent (see Overview), we increased our liquidity based 
on Luminent’s cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments on hand as of the consummation of the merger, 
or $107.7 million at December 31, 2001. 

MARKET RISKS 

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our Consolidated Financial Statements through adverse changes in financial market prices and 
rates and inflation. Our market risk exposure results primarily from fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates. We manage our exposure 
to these market risks through our regular operating and financing activities and have not historically hedged these risks through the use of derivative 
financial instruments. The term hedge is used to mean a strategy designed to manage risks of volatility in prices or interest and foreign exchange rate 
movements on certain assets, liabilities or anticipated transactions and creates a relationship in which gains or losses on derivative instruments are 
expected to counter-balance the losses or gains on the assets, liabilities or anticipated transactions exposed to such market risks. 

Interest Rates. We are exposed to interest rate fluctuations on our investments, short-term borrowings and long-term obligations. Our cash and short-
term investments are subject to limited interest rate risk, and are primarily maintained in money market funds and bank deposits. Our variable-rate 
short-term borrowings are also subject to limited interest rate risk due to their short-term maturities. Our long-term obligations were entered into with 
fixed and variable interest rates. In connection with our $50.0 million variable-rate term loan due in 2003, we entered into a specific hedge, an interest rate 
swap, to modify the interest characteristics of this instrument. The interest rate swap was used to reduce our cost of financing and the fluctuations in the 
aggregate interest expense. The notional amount, interest payment and maturity dates of the swap match the principal, interest payment and maturity 
dates of the related debt. Accordingly, any market risk or opportunity associated with this swap is offset by the opposite market impact on the related 
debt. In February 2002, we paid off our $50.0 million term loan and terminated our interest rate swap for $3.2 million. To date, we have not entered into 
any other derivative instruments, however, as we continue to monitor our risk profile, we may enter into additional hedging instruments in the future. 

Foreign Exchange Rates. We operate on an international basis with a portion of our revenues and expenses being incurred in currencies other than the U.S. 
dollar. Fluctuations in the value of these foreign currencies in which we conduct our business relative to the U.S. dollar will cause U.S. dollar translation 
of such currencies to vary from one period to another. We cannot predict the effect of exchange rate fluctuations upon future operating results. However, 
because we have expenses and revenues in each of the principal functional currencies, the exposure to our financial results to currency fluctuations is 
reduced. We have not historically attempted to reduce our currency risks through hedging instruments; however, we may do so in the future. 

Inflation. We believe that the relatively moderate rate of inflation in the United States over the past few years has not had a significant impact on our sales 
or operating results or on the prices of raw materials. However, in view of our recent expansion of operations in Taiwan, Israel and other countries, which 
have experienced substantial inflation, there can be no assurance that inflation will not have a material adverse effect on our operating results in the future. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Stockholders of  MRV Communications, Inc.: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of MRV Communications, Inc. (a Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 
31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive loss and cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of MRV 
Communications, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

Los Angeles, California 
February 12, 2002 
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MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2001 and 2000 

                                                                       Assets

 2001 2000
  (in thousands)
Current assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents $   164,676 $   210,080
  Short-term investments 46,696 17,766
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,341 56,181
  Accounts receivable, net of
    allowance of $14,799 in 2001 and
    $9,480 in 2000 55,106 62,713
  Inventories 57,308 77,005
  Deferred income taxes 598 31,227
  Other current assets 10,044 22,750
        Total current assets 343,769 477,722

Property and equipment, net 72,012 72,269

Other assets:
  Investments 16,937 31,734
  Deferred income taxes 22,631 6,209
  Goodwill and other intangibles, net 395,312 504,027
  Other long-term assets 13,834 5,660
 448,714 547,630
 $   864,495 $ 1,097,621
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets. 
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MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2001 and 2000 

 Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

 2001 2000
                                                                                                               (in thousands, except par value)
Current liabilities:
  Current portion of long-term debt $    52,226 $     2,937
  Short-term obligations 18,679 9,104
  Accounts payable 48,586 56,088
  Accrued liabilities 39,035 34,894
  Income taxes payable 1,914 6,477
  Deferred revenue 4,165 1,470
  Other current liabilities 3,198 --
        Total current liabilities 167,803 110,970

Long-term liabilities:
  Convertible subordinated notes 89,646 89,646
  Long-term debt, net of current portion 8,871 60,878
  Other long-term liabilities 3,737 3,980
        Total long-term liabilities 102,254 154,504

Commitments and contingencies

Minority interest 9,762 50,592

Stockholders’ equity:
  Preferred stock, $0.01 par value:
    Authorized - 1,000 shares; no shares issued or outstanding -- --
  Common stock, $0.0017 par value:
    Authorized - 160,000 shares

    Issued - 82,824 shares in 2001 and 73,327 in 2000
    Outstanding - 82,776 shares in 2001 and 73,279 in 2000 141 126
  Additional paid-in capital 1,125,675 1,060,650
  Deferred stock compensation, net (33,077) (100,862)
  Accumulated deficit (497,683) (171,330)
  Treasury stock, 48 shares at cost in 2001 and 2000 (133) (133)
  Accumulated other comprehensive loss (10,247) (6,896)
        Total stockholders’ equity 584,676 781,555
 $   864,495 $ 1,097,621

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated balance sheets. 
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MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 
For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 

 2001 2000 1999
     (in thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenues, net $ 332,844 $ 319,394 $ 288,524
Costs and expenses:
  Cost of goods sold(1) 267,389 203,371 197,442
  Research and development(1) 94,813 74,078 35,319
  Selling, general and administrative(1) 150,674 124,700 67,859
  Amortization of goodwill and other intangibles 126,484 66,814 3,898
  Restructuring costs 14,111 -- --
 653,471 468,963 304,518
        Operating loss (320,627) (149,569) (15,994)

Other income (expense):
  Interest expense and other (9,586) (2,829) (4,500)
  Interest income 6,765 551 4,822
  Loss on equity method investments (19,956) (7,300) --
  Minority interest 11,577 796 610
 (11,200) (8,782) 932

        Loss before provision (benefit) for income taxes
         and extraordinary gain (331,827) (158,351) (15,062)

Provision (benefit) for income taxes 4,475 (5,398) (2,153)
        Loss before extraordinary gain (336,302) (152,953) (12,909)

Extraordinary gain on purchase of minority
  interest in Luminent, Inc., net of tax 9,949 -- --
        Net loss $(326,353) $(152,953) $ (12,909)

Loss per share information:
  Basic and diluted loss before
    extraordinary gain per share $   (4.40) $   (2.33) $   (0.24)
  Basic and diluted net loss per share $   (4.27) $   (2.33) $   (0.24)
  Basic and diluted weighted average shares outstanding 76,369 65,669 53,920

(1)  Includes amounts relating to deferred stock compensation expense of $7.8 million and $8.3 million, $14.0 million and $13.3 million and $48.0 million 
and $38.4 million presented in cost of goods sold, research and development and selling, general and administrative, respectively, for the years ended 
December 31, 2001 and 2000. The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Loss For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 

 Accumulated
 Common Additional Deferred Other
  Paid-in Stock Accumulated  Treasury Comprehensive
 Shares Amount Capital Compensation Deficit Stock Loss Total
        (in thousands)
Balance at December 31, 1998 53,278  $ 91 $   180,653 $      -- $  (5,471) $    (133) $   (711) $ 174,429
  Exercise of stock options   
    and warrants 2,156  4 2,816 -- -- -- -- 2,820
  Exercise of stock warrants by
    Intel Corporation 800  1 7,999 -- -- -- -- 8,000
  Other --  -- -- -- 3 -- -- 3
  Comprehensive loss:
    Translation adjustments --  -- -- -- -- -- (5,528) (5,528)
    Net loss --  -- -- -- (12,909) -- -- (12,909)
  Comprehensive loss --  -- -- -- -- -- -- (18,437)
Balance at December 31, 1999 56,234  96 191,468 -- (18,377) (133) (6,239) 166,815
  Exercise of stock options
    and warrants 2,896  5 7,757 -- -- -- -- 7,762
  Tax benefit from exercise of
    stock options --  -- 11,417 -- -- -- -- 11,417
  Issuance of common stock in
    connection with acquisitions 14,123  25 639,172 -- -- -- -- 639,197
  Issuance of common stock in
    connection with conversion of
    convertible subordinated notes 26  -- 354 -- -- -- -- 354
  Effect of subsidiary equity    
    transactions --  -- 49,679 -- -- -- -- 49,679
  Deferred stock compensation --  -- 160,803 (160,803) -- -- -- --
  Amortization of deferred stock  
    compensation --  -- -- 59,941 -- -- -- 59,941
  Comprehensive loss:
    Net loss --  -- -- -- (152,953) -- -- (152,953)
    Translation adjustments --  -- -- -- -- -- (657) (657)
  Comprehensive loss         (153,610)
Balance at December 31, 2000 73,279  126 1,060,650 (100,862) (171,330) (133) (6,896) 781,555
  Issuance of common stock
    in connection with acquisition 1,247  2 19,719 -- -- -- -- 19,721
  Issuance of common stock in
    a private placement 2,529  4 19,501 -- -- -- -- 19,505
  Fair value of stock options issued
    in exchange for investment --  -- 508 -- -- -- -- 508
  Issuance of common stock for
    purchase of Luminent, Inc.’s
    minority interest 5,160  9 16,845 -- -- -- -- 16,854
  Exercise of stock options
    and warrants 561  -- 6,406 -- -- -- -- 6,406
  Deferred stock compensation --  -- 7,816 (7,816) -- -- -- --
  Fair value of stock options issued
    to a non-employee --  -- 535 -- -- -- -- 535
  Forfeited stock options --  -- (6,305) -- -- -- -- (6,305)
  Amortization of deferred stock                                 
    compensation --  -- -- 75,601 -- -- -- 75,601
  Comprehensive loss:
    Net loss --  -- -- -- (326,353) -- -- (326,353)
    Unrealized loss on interest
      rate swap --  -- -- -- -- -- (3,198) (3,198)
    Foreign currency translation
      adjustment --  -- -- -- -- -- (153) (153)
  Comprehensive loss         (329,704)
Balance at December 31, 2001 82,776  $141 $ 1,125,675 $ (33,077) $(497,683) $    (133) $(10,247) $ 584,676

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. For the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 

 2001 2000 1999 
        (in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
  Net loss $(326,353) $(152,953) $(12,909)
  Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash
    provided by (used in) operating activities:
      Depreciation and amortization 140,554 77,871 12,501
      Amortization of deferred stock compensation expense 69,831 59,941 --
      Allowance for doubtful accounts 5,654 3,833 1,416
      Deferred income taxes 15,134 (25,205) (1,302)
      Realized gain on investment -- (50) --
      Extraordinary gain on purchase of minority interest
        of Luminent, Inc. (9,949) -- --
      (Gain) loss on disposition of property and equipment (178) 16 --
      Tax benefit from stock option exercises -- 11,417 --
      Impairment loss on property and equipment 7,787 -- --
      Loss on equity method investments 19,956 -- --
      Minority interests’ share of income (11,557) (796) (610)
  Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net
    of effects from acquisitions:
      Restricted cash and cash equivalents 46,840 -- --
      Accounts receivable 1,953 4,949 (7,457)
      Inventories 19,697 (28,869) 12,075
      Refundable income taxes -- 3,216 --
      Other assets 4,532 (12,020) (519) 
      Accounts payable (7,502) 28,939 3,698
      Accrued liabilities 1,321 4,890 1,715
      Income taxes payable (4,563) (5,154) (3,661)
      Deferred revenue 2,695 175 (2,920)
        Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (24,148) (29,800) 2,027
Cash flows from investing activities:
  Purchases of property and equipment (19,923) (23,977) (8,053)
  Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 453 1,520 --
  Purchases of investments (33,581) (21,566) (19,242)
  Proceeds from maturity of investments -- 97,704 38,293
  Cash used in acquisitions, net of cash received -- (44,517) (4,773)
        Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (53,051) 9,164 6,225
Cash flows from financing activities:
  Net proceeds from equity transaction of Luminent, Inc. -- 132,290 --
  Net proceeds from issuance of common stock 25,911 7,762 10,820
  Borrowings on short-term obligations 39,034 35,887 --
  Payments on short-term obligations (29,459) (35,949) --
  Principal payments on capital lease obligations (148) (163) 94           
  Borrowings on long-term debt -- 62,696 --
  Payments on long-term debt (2,570) (4,002) --
  Other long-term liabilities (820) -- --
        Net cash provided by financing activities 31,948 198,521 10,914
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (153) (2,135) (5,528)
Net (decrease) increase  in cash and cash equivalents (45,404) 175,750 13,638
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 210,080 34,330 20,692
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 164,676 $ 210,080 $ 34,330

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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MRV COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements December 31, 2001 

1. Description of Business 

MRV Communications, Inc. (a Delaware corporation, MRV or the Company) creates, acquires, finances and operates companies, and through them, 
designs, develops, manufactures and markets products, which enable high-speed broadband communications. MRV concentrates on companies and 
products devoted to optical active and passive components, switches and routers, remote device management and network physical infrastructure 
equipment. MRV’s strategy involves creating value for its stockholders and the other minority shareholders of its subsidiaries by helping the companies 
grow and access the public and private capital markets. 

In November 2000, Luminent, a publicly owned subsidiary, completed an initial public offering of its common stock, selling 12.0 million shares at $12.0 
per share, raising net proceeds of approximately $132.3 million. As of December 31, 2000, MRV owned 92 percent of the outstanding capital stock of 
Luminent. In December 2001, MRV completed its acquisition of Luminent’s eight percent minority interest and merged Luminent back into MRV (see 
Note 2, Transactions with Stock of a Subsidiary). 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of MRV and its wholly-owned and majority owned subsidiaries. All significant 
intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated. MRV consolidates the financial results of related development stage enterprises when it 
has effective control, voting control or has provided the entity’s working capital. When others invest in these enterprises reducing its voting control 
below 50 percent, MRV discontinues consolidation and uses the equity method of accounting for these investments. 

Foreign Currency Translation 

Transactions originally denominated in other currencies are converted into U.S. dollars in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 52, “Foreign Currency Translation”. Increased or decreases in the resulting assets or liabilities which are denominated in a foreign currency 
are recorded as foreign currency gains and losses and are included in other income (expense) in determining net loss. 

Transaction Gains or Losses 

For foreign operations with the local currency as the functional currency, assets and liabilities are translated from the local currencies into U.S. dollars at 
the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Revenues, expenses and cash flows are translated at weighted average exchange rates for the period 
to approximate translation at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates those elements are recognized in the financial statements. Translation adjustments 
resulting from the process of translating the local currency financial statements into U.S. dollars are included in determining comprehensive loss. 

Revenue Recognition 

MRV generally recognizes product revenue, net of sales discounts, returns and allowances, when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, delivery 
has occurred and all significant contractual obligations have been satisfied, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection is considered probable. Products 
are generally shipped “FOB shipping point” with no right of return. Sales with contingencies, such as rights of return, rotation rights, conditional 
acceptance provisions and price protection, are rare and insignificant and are deferred until the contingencies have been satisfied or the contingent period 
has lapsed. MRV’s major revenue-generating products consist of: passive and active optical components; switches and routers; remote device management; 
and network physical infrastructure equipment. Revenue generated through the sales of services and systems support has been insignificant. 

MRV generally warrants its products against defects in materials and workmanship for one year. The estimated cost of warranty obligations and sales 
returns and other allowances are recognized at the time of revenue recognition based on contract terms and prior claims experience. 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 

MRV considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents. MRV maintains cash balances and 
investments in highly qualified financial institutions. At various times such amounts are in excess of insured limits. In connection with MRV’s its long-
term debt and interest rate swap agreement (see Notes 9 and 10) as of December 31, 2000, $56.2 million in cash was restricted as the term loan and 
the swap expire in 2003. In February 2002, MRV repaid the long-term debt and terminated the swap, and as such, the restricted cash balance of $53.4 
million has been presented in Cash and Cash Equivalents and the related long term debt has been reflected as a current liability as of December 31, 2001. 
Restricted cash of $9.3 million as of December 31, 2001 represents cash restricted against short-term and long-term obligations. 
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Investments 

MRV accounts for its investments under the provisions of SFAS No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” 

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, short-term investments consisted principally of U.S. Treasury Bonds, Municipal Bonds and Corporate Bonds. As 
defined by SFAS No. 115, MRV has classified these investments in debt securities as “held-for-maturity” investments and all investments are recorded at 
their amortized cost basis, which approximated their fair value at December 31, 2001 and 2000. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, all held-for-maturity 
investments were short-term expiring at various dates through the following year. 

Inventories 

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and consist of material, labor and overhead. Cost is determined by the first-in, first-out method. 

Inventories consisted of the following as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands): 

 2001 2000
Raw materials $  15,444 $  36,278
Work-in-progress 19,230 17,721
Finished goods 22,634 23,006
 $  57,308 $  77,005

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, 
ranging from three to thirty-three years. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred and the costs of additions and betterments that 
increase the useful lives of the assets are capitalized. 

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands): 

 2001 2000
Property and equipment, at cost:
  Land $   3,521 $   3,559
  Building 19,448 19,563
  Machinery and equipment 67,713 57,369
  Furniture and fixtures 12,347 12,824
  Computer hardware and software 12,084 10,823
  Leasehold improvements 7,870 7,221
  Construction in progress 1,065 3,815
 124,048 115,174
  Less - accumulated depreciation and amortization (52,036) (42,905)
 $  72,012 $  72,269

Goodwill and Other Intangibles 

Intangible assets represent intellectual property acquired, purchased intangible assets and the excess acquisition cost over the fair value of tangible and 
identified intangible net assets of the businesses acquired (goodwill). Purchased intangible assets include patents, assembled work forces, customer 
contracts and goodwill. Goodwill is amortized using the straight-line method over five years. Other intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line 
method over estimated useful lives ranging from one to 12 years. 

The components of intangible assets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows (in thousands): 

 2001 2000
Patents $   64,600 $    64,600
Assembled work forces 1,790 1,790
Customer contracts 720 720
Goodwill 510,426 510,426
 577,536 577,536
Less - accumulated amortization (182,224) (73,509)
 $  395,312 $  504,027
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Impairment of Intangibles and Other Long-Lived Assets 

MRV evaluates its long-term assets, such as goodwill and other intangibles and property and equipment, for impairment at the acquired business unit level 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may be impaired. MRV considers events or changes such as product 
discontinuance, plant closures, product dispositions, a history of operating losses or other changes in circumstances to indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable. The carrying value of an asset is considered impaired when the anticipated undiscounted cash flow from such assets is less than its carrying 
value. In that event, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair market value. Fair market value is determined using 
the anticipated cash flows discounted at a rate based on MRV’s weighted average costs of capital, which represents the blended after-tax costs of debt and 
equity. 

For the year ended December 31, 2001, MRV determined that $14.2 million of goodwill and intangibles and $9.2 million of equity method investments 
were impaired. These amounts were determined to be impaired using the method discussed above. The remaining carrying values of intangibles and 
investments were determined to be realizable. This process and analysis requires management to use significant judgment and apply assumptions 
regarding the future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets and the eventual disposition of such assets. While management believes the 
carrying value of its assets are realizable based on its analysis, changes in the assumptions used in its models could produce significantly different results. 
This analysis has been performed using the guidance prescribed in SFAS No, 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-
Lived Assets to be Disposed of”, see Note 2, Recently Issued Accounting Standards, for the anticipated impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 142. The 
impairment of intangibles of $14.2 million has been recorded as amortization of goodwill and other intangibles and the $9.2 million has been recorded as 
other income (expense) in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2001. There were no impairment 
losses recorded for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

MRV’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, investments, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable, accrued liabilities and short-term debt obligations are carried at cost, which approximates their fair market value due to the short-term nature 
of those instruments. The fair value of long-term debt obligations is estimated based on current interest rates available to MRV for debt instruments 
with similar terms, degrees of risk and remaining maturities. The carrying values of these obligations approximate their fair values. 

Software Development Costs 

In accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed,” development costs 
related to software products are expensed as incurred until the technological feasibility of the product has been established. Technological feasibility in 
MRV’s circumstances occurs when a working model is completed. After technological feasibility is established, additional costs would be capitalized. 

MRV believes its process for developing software is essentially completed concurrent with the establishment of technological feasibility, and, accordingly, 
no software development costs have been capitalized to date. 

Advertising Costs 

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred. 

Income Taxes 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are computed based on the temporary differences between the financial statement and income tax bases of assets 
and liabilities using the statutory marginal income tax rate in effect for the years in which the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred income tax 
expenses or credits are based on the changes in the deferred income tax assets or liabilities from period to period. 

Loss Per Share 

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per 
share is calculated by dividing net loss by the sum of the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, plus all additional common shares 
that would have been outstanding if potentially dilutive securities or common stock equivalents had been issued. Options to purchase 12.4 million, 7.1 
million and 5.5 million shares were not included in the computation of years 2001, 2000 and 1999 diluted loss per share because such options were 
considered anti-dilutive. Warrants to purchase 1.5 million, 2.4 million and 3.3 million shares were not included in the computation of years 2001, 2000 
and 1999 diluted loss per share because such warrants were considered anti-dilutive. Shares associated with MRV’s $89.6 million outstanding convertible 
subordinated notes were not included in the computation of loss per share as they are anti-dilutive. 
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The following schedule summarizes the information used to compute earnings per share (in thousands, except per share data) for each of the three years 
in the period ended December 31, 2001: 

 2001 2000 1999
Loss before extraordinary item $ (336,302) $  (152,953) $   (12,909)
Extraordinary item - gain on purchase of 
  minority interest, net of tax 9,949 -- --
      Net loss $ (326,353) $  (152,953) $   (12,909)
Weighted average number of shares used to
  compute basic and diluted loss per share 76,369 65,669 53,920
Basic and diluted loss per share before
  extraordinary item $      (4.40) $       (2.33) $       (0.24)
Extraordinary gain per basic and diluted share 0.13 -- --
Basic and diluted loss per share $      (4.27) $       (2.33) $       (0.24)

Stock-Based Compensation 

MRV accounts for its employee stock plan under the intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion (APB) No. 25, 
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations, and has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation.” 

MRV accounts for option and warrant grants to non-employees using the guidance prescribed by SFAS No. 123, FASB Interpretation No. (FIN) 44, 
“Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation (an interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25),” and Emerging Issue Task Force 
(EITF) No. 96-18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or In Conjunction with Selling, 
Goods, or Services,” whereby the fair value of such option and warrant grants are measured using the fair value at the earlier of the date at which the 
non-employee’s performance is completed or a performance commitment is reached. 

Deferred stock compensation expense is being amortized using the graded vesting method over four years. Using this method, approximately 57 percent, 
26 percent, 13 percent and 4 percent, respectively, of each option’s compensation expense is amortized in each of the four years following the date of 
grant. Deferred stock compensation generated during 2001 was $7.0 million generated through acquisitions. Deferred stock compensation generated 
during 2000 was $148.3 million of which $94.1 million was generated through acquisitions (see Note 4) and $54.2 million was generated through stock 
options granted to Luminent’s Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer (see Note 13). Total deferred stock compensation expense for the 
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 was $69.8 million and $60.0 million, respectively. There was no deferred stock compensation expense incurred 
for the year ended December 31, 1999. 

Transactions with Stock of a Subsidiary 

At the time a subsidiary sells its stock to unrelated parties at a price in excess of its book value, the book value of MRV’s investment in that subsidiary 
increases. If at that time, the subsidiary is not a newly-formed, non-operating entity, nor a research and development, start-up or development stage 
company, nor does MRV contemplate subsequent capital transactions or intend to spin-off the subsidiary to stockholders, MRV records the increase in 
its investment as a gain in Other Income, net in its Consolidated Statements of Operations. Otherwise, the increase in its investment is considered as 
additional paid-in capital, which is included in Effect of Subsidiary Equity Transactions in MRV’s Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity. 

On November 9, 2000, Luminent, a wholly-owned subsidiary of MRV, issued 12.0 million shares of its common stock for $12.0 per share, or $144.0 
million, to complete its Initial Public Offering (IPO). As part of MRV’s plan to spin-off Luminent to MRV stockholders, the purchase price in excess 
of its book value, or $49.7 million has been included in Effect of Subsidiary Equity Transactions in MRV’s Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ 
Equity for the year ended December 31, 2000. 

In September 2001, MRV and Luminent jointly announced that MRV intended to acquire Luminent’s eight percent minority interest (established 
through Luminent’s November 2000 IPO), and merge Luminent back into MRV through a short-form merger. It was determined that each Luminent 
stockholder would receive 0.43 shares of MRV common stock in exchange for their Luminent common stock. Additionally, all stock options to 
purchase Luminent common stock would be converted into stock options to purchase MRV’s common stock based on the same exchange ratio. The 
merger was completed in December 2001. MRV exchanged 5.2 million shares of common stock for 12.0 million shares of Luminent common stock. 
MRV’s common stock had a fair value of $16.9 million, based on the average market price five days before and after the terms were determined. MRV 
recorded an extraordinary gain from the merger of $9.9 million, net of tax, which equals to the excess minority interest reduced by the fair value paid, 
net of the costs incurred to effect the merger. 
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

In June 2001, the FASB approved two pronouncements: SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets”, which provide guidance on the accounting for business combinations to be accounted for using the purchase method. Under the new rules, 
goodwill will no longer be subject to amortization over its useful life. Rather, goodwill will be subject to at least an annual impairment assessment. This 
assessment is a fundamentally different two-step approach and is based on a comparison between a reporting unit’s fair value and its carrying value. 
Certain intangible assets have newly defined criteria and will be accounted for separately from goodwill and will continue to be amortized over their 
useful lives. Under the new impairment assessment, fair value is more focused on market value or market capitalization. That is, fair value is determined, 
based on, among other factors, the current market value of MRV and its reporting units. As of December 31, 2001, MRV’s common stock was trading 
at amounts significantly lower than its book value per share. Based on this current environment, management would anticipate recording, upon adoption 
of this standard during the first quarter of 2002, significant impairment losses, although, such amounts have not be determined. Should market values 
dramatically improve during the first half of 2002, impairment losses, if any, could be reduced or eliminated. 

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations”. SFAS No. 143 requires entities to record the fair 
value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in the period in which the obligation is incurred. When the liability is initially recorded, the entity 
capitalizes the cost by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period, 
and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. This statement is effective on January 1, 2003 with earlier application 
encouraged. The Company is currently reviewing this statement and has not yet determined its impact, if any, on our financial position, results of 
operations or cash flows. 

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived 
assets be measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or in discontinued operations. 

Company will adopt this statement on January 1, 2002 and is currently reviewing the statement to determine its impact, if any, on the Company’s 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Reclassifications 

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation. 

3. Restructuring and One-Time Charges 

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the management of Luminent, a subsidiary of MRV, approved and implemented a restructuring plan and 
other actions in order to adjust operations and administration as a result of the dramatic slowdown in the communications equipment industry generally 
and the optical components sector in particular. Major actions primarily involved the reduction of facilities in the U.S. and in Taiwan, the reduction 
of workforce, the abandonment of certain assets, the cancellation and termination of purchase commitments and the write-down of certain inventory. 
These actions are expected to realign the business based on current and near-term growth rates. All of these actions are expected to be completed by 
the second quarter of 2002. 

Restructuring Charges 

During the year ended December 31, 2001, Luminent recorded restructuring charges totaling $20.3 million. Costs for restructuring activities are limited 
to either incremental costs that directly result from the restructuring activities and provide no future revenue generating benefit, or costs incurred under 
contractual obligations that existed before the restructuring plan and will continue with either no future revenue generating benefit or become a penalty 
incurred for termination of the obligation. 

Employee severance costs and related benefits of $1.3 million are related to approximately 600 layoffs during the year ended December 31, 2001, bringing 
the Luminent’s total workforce to approximately 1,100 employees as of December 31, 2001. Affected employees came from all divisions and areas of 
Luminent. The majority of affected employees were in the manufacturing group. 

In addition to the costs associated with employee severance, Luminent identified a number of assets, including leased facilities and equipment that are 
no longer required due to current market conditions, operations and expected growth rates. The net facilities costs related to closed and abandoned 



facilities costs of approximately $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, are primarily related to future obligations under operating leases. 
The total lease charge is net of approximately $3.7 million in expected sublease revenue on leases that Luminent cannot terminate. In connection with 
these closed and abandoned facilities, Luminent has recorded asset impairment charges of $10.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, consisting 
of leasehold improvements and certain manufacturing equipment to write-down the value of this equipment. Due to its specialized nature, Luminent 
has determined that these assets have minimal or no future benefit and has recorded a provision reflecting the net book value relating to these assets. 
Purchase commitments of $6.2 million recorded in cost of sales, for the year ended December 31, 2001, are to cancel or renegotiate outstanding contracts 
for materials and capital assets that are no longer required due to Luminent’s significantly reduced orders for optical components and sales projections 
over the next twelve months. 

As of December 31, 2001, the restructuring liability has been reduced by cash payments of $1.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, and non-
cash related charges of $10.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, resulting in an ending liability balance of $8.7 million. Luminent expects to 
utilize the remaining balance by the end of the second quarter of 2002. Luminent expects that it will spend approximately $8.7 million through the next 
two quarters to carry out the plan, which will be paid through cash and cash equivalents and through operating cash flows. Luminent began to realize 
savings related to the workforce reductions in late 2001 with estimated ongoing quarterly net savings of $2.4 million. In addition, Luminent will realize 
reduced depreciation charges of approximately $384,000 per quarter through December 2004 and $163,000 per quarter through December 2005 for facility 
costs. These savings are expected to be realized as reductions in cost of sales, research and development and selling, general and administrative expenses. 

A summary of the restructuring costs for the year ended December 31, 2001 consist of the following (in thousands): 

 Original Additional  Remaining
 Provision Provision Utilized Balance
Exit costs
  Asset impairment $   9,544 $     897 $ 10,441 $       --
  Closed and abandoned
    facilities 1,125 1,280 88 2,317
  Purchase commitments 2,386 3,787 468 5,705
 13,055 5,964 10,997 8,022
  Employee severance costs 1,281 -- 626 655
 $ 14,336 $  5,964 $ 11,623 $  8,677

A summary of the restructuring costs by line item for the year ended December 31, 2001 consist of the following (in thousands): 

 2001
Cost of sales $   6,173
Restructuring costs 14,111
Other income (expense) 16
 $ 20,300

One-Time Charges 

As a result of the significant negative economic and industry trends impacting Luminent’s expected sales over the next twelve months, Luminent also 
recorded one-time charges of $29.2 million to write-down the remaining book value of certain inventory related to certain transceivers, duplexors, and 
triplexors that are previous generation products to its realizable value during the year ended December 31, 2001. The one-time charges to write-down 
inventory were subsequently reduced by $8.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2001 to reflect the sale of previously written-off items. 
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4. Business Acquisitions 

The following table presents information regarding acquisitions by MRV in each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. MRV 
completed no material acquisitions for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 1999, excluding the acquisition of the Luminent minority interest 
discussed in Note 2. All of these acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting, and the results of operations of each business 
have been included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations from the date of acquisition. 

 Date of Total Form of Consideration and
Acquired Company Acquisition Consideration Other Notes to Acquisition
Year Ended December 31, 2000

Fiber Optic Communications, Inc. April 24, 2000 $ 309.7 million $48.6 million in cash and 5.4 million shares of  common stock 
   and options issued; approximately 97 percent of capital stock 
   assumed; goodwill recorded of $261.5 million; deferred stock 
   compensation recorded of $14.1 million.

Jolt Limited May 1, 2000 $   57.7 million 1.9 million shares of common stock and options issued; 100 
   percent of capital stock assumed; goodwill and intangibles 
   recorded of $33.7 million; deferred stock compensation 
   recorded of $25.0 million.

Quantum Optech Inc. July 12, 2000 $   36.1 million 1.2 million shares of common stock and options issued; 100 
   percent of capital stock assumed; goodwill recorded of $27.8 
   million; deferred stock compensation recorded of $2.7 million.

AstroTerra Corporation July 12, 2000 $ 160.3 million 2.4 million shares of common stock and options issued; 100 
   percent of capital stock assumed; goodwill and intangibles 
   recorded of $108.4 million; deferred stock compensation 
   recorded of $50.0 million.

Optronics International Corp. July 21, 2000 $ 123.9 million 4.2 million shares of common stock and options issued; 
   approximately 99 percent of capital stock assumed; goodwill 
   recorded of $99.4 million; deferred stock compensation 
   recorded of $13.4 million.

Others Various $   16.5 million 507,000 shares of common stock issued; 100 percent of capital 
   stock assumed; goodwill recorded of $14.9 million; deferred stock 
   compensation recorded of $1.4 million.

On April 24, 2000, MRV completed the acquisition of approximately 97 percent of the outstanding capital stock of Fiber Optic Communications, Inc., a 
Republic of China corporation. Fiber Optic Communications is a manufacturer of passive fiber optic components for Wavelength Division Multiplexing. 
Under the terms of the purchase agreement, Fiber Optic Communications shareholders received approximately $48.6 million in cash and approximately 
4.7 million shares of MRV common stock and options to purchase 680,000 shares of MRV common stock for a total purchase price of approximately 
$309.7 million. The issuance price of the MRV common stock was approximately $53 per share, which was determined based on the average market price 
five days before and after the terms were agreed upon. The options to purchase MRV common stock are exercisable at $3.00 per share, have an aggregate 
intrinsic value of $14.1 million, and vest over a four-year period. The acquisition is being accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The 
excess purchase price paid over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired of $261.5 million has been recorded as goodwill and is being amortized 
on a straight-line basis over 5 years. The deferred compensation is being amortized using the graded vesting method over 4 years. 

 
On May 1, 2000, MRV completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding capital stock of Jolt Limited, an Israeli corporation. Jolt designs, manufactures 
and sells multi-port wireless optics communications equipment. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, shareholders received approximately 1.1 
million shares of MRV common stock. In addition, the employees of Jolt received options to purchase approximately 849,000 shares of common stock 
of MRV. The purchase price aggregated approximately $57.7 million. The issuance price of the common stock was approximately $31 per share, which 
was determined based on the average market price five days before and after the terms of the acquisition were agreed upon. The options to purchase 
common stock are exercisable at $6 per share, have an aggregate intrinsic value of $25.0 million, and vest over an employment period of four years. The 
acquisition is being accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The excess purchase price paid over the fair value of the net identifiable 
assets acquired of $33.7 million has been recorded as goodwill and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 years. The deferred compensation of 
approximately $25.0 million is being amortized using the graded vesting method over four years. 
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On July 12, 2000, MRV completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding capital stock of Quantum Optech Inc., a Republic of China corporation. 
Quantum Optech is a manufacturer of optical thin film coating and filters for Dense Wavelength Division Multiplexing. Under the terms of the purchase 
agreement, Quantum Optech shareholders received approximately 1.0 million shares of MRV common stock and options to purchase approximately 
160,000 shares of MRV common stock for a total purchase price of approximately $36.1 million. The issuance price of the MRV common stock was 
approximately $30 per share, which was determined based on the average market price five days before and after the terms were agreed upon. The 
options to purchase MRV common stock are exercisable at $3.00 per share, have a fair value of $4.0 million, of which unvested options have an intrinsic 
value of $2.7 million and vested options have a fair value of $1.3 million, and the remaining vest over a four-year period. The excess purchase price paid 
over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired of $27.8 million has been recorded as goodwill and is being amortized on a straight-line basis 
over 5 years. The deferred compensation is being amortized using the graded vesting method over 4 years. 

On July 12, 2000, MRV completed the acquisition of AstroTerra, a California corporation that develops and manufactures free-space optical wireless 
communication systems to connect data and telecommunications networks. MRV exchanged approximately 1.6 million shares of its common stock for 
all of the outstanding capital stock of AstroTerra. In addition, the employees of AstroTerra received options to purchase approximately 809,000 shares of 
common stock of MRV. The purchase price aggregated approximately $160.3 million. The issuance price of the common stock was approximately $65 per 
share, which was determined based on the average market price five days before and after the terms of the agreement were agreed upon. The options to 
purchase common stock are exercisable at approximately $3 per share, have a fair value of approximately $50.0 million and vest over an employment period 
of four years. The deferred compensation is being amortized using the graded vesting method over four years. The excess purchase price paid over the fair 
value of the net identifiable assets acquired of $108.4 million has been recorded as goodwill and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 years. 

On July 21, 2000, MRV completed the acquisition of approximately 99 percent of the outstanding capital stock of Optronics International Corp., a 
Republic of China corporation. Optronics International is a manufacturer of high temperature semiconductor lasers, transceivers and detectors for 
optical networks. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, Optronics International shareholders received approximately 3.4 million shares of MRV 
common stock and options to purchase approximately 800,000 shares of MRV common stock for a total purchase price of approximately $123.9 million. 
The issuance price of the MRV common stock was approximately $30 per share, which was determined based on the average market price five days 
before and after the terms were agreed upon. The options to purchase MRV common stock are exercisable at $3.00 per share, have a fair value of $20.0 
million, of which unvested options have an intrinsic value of $13.4 million and vested options have a fair value of $6.6 million, and the remaining vest 
over a four-year period. The acquisition is being accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The excess purchase price paid over the fair 
value of the net identifiable assets acquired of $99.4 million has been recorded as goodwill and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 years. 
The deferred compensation is being amortized using the graded vesting method over 4 years. 

The purchase price of Fiber Optic Communications, Jolt, Quantum Optech, AstroTerra, Optronics International and Others were allocated as follows 
(in thousands, unaudited): 

Purchase price $  704,241
Allocation of purchase price:
   Net tangible assets 51,902
   Deferred stock compensation 106,602
   Goodwill and other intangibles 545,737

The results of operations of these acquisitions have been included in MRV’s consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. The 
following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations of these acquisitions as if the acquisitions had 
occurred as of January 1, 1999, giving effect to certain adjustments, including amortization of goodwill and other intangibles and deferred stock 
compensation charges. The unaudited pro forma share data assumes the shares issued in connection with these acquisitions were outstanding as of 
January 1, 1999 (in thousands, except per share amounts, unaudited). 

                                                                                            December 31,
 2000 1999
Pro forma revenue $    335,486 $    322,645
Pro forma net loss $ (143,044) $ (115,775)
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share $      (1.83) $      (1.75)
Pro forma basic and diluted weighted average
  shares outstanding 77,996 66,247
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Acquisition-Related Unearned Stock Compensation 

During 2001 and 2000, MRV recorded acquisition-related purchase consideration of $7.1 million and $94.1 million, respectively, as unearned stock-based 
compensation, in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation.” This amount 
represents the portion of the purchase consideration related to shares issued contingent on continued employment of certain employee stockholders and 
the intrinsic value of stock options assumed that are earned as future services are provided by employees. The compensation is being recognized over the 
related employment period using the graded vesting method. A total of $33.2 million and $43.7 million of expense was recognized for 2001 and 2000, 
respectively, relating to these acquisitions. 

5. Investments in Subsidiaries 

The following table presents information regarding investments made by MRV in subsidiaries accounted for under the equity method of accounting 
or consolidated. Subsidiaries in which MRV owns greater than 50 percent ownership or exercises control have been consolidated in the accompanying 
consolidated financial statements. 

Subsidiary Ownership % Form of Consideration(5)
Consolidated Subsidiaries

EDSLan SRL 87%(1) Purchased an additional 7 percent ownership in 2001 for approximately $1.7 million; 
  purchased an additional 10 percent ownership in 2000 for approximately $1.5 million;  
  purchased an additional 10 percent ownership in 1999 for approximately $1.5 million;  
  purchased an additional 10 percent ownership in 1997 for approximately $500,000;   
  purchased 50 percent ownership in 1996 for approximately $1.1 million.

Tecnonet SRL 60%(2) Purchased an additional 10 percent ownership in 1999 for approximately $600,000;   
  purchased 50 percent ownership in 1998 for approximately$3.1 million.

RDS 75% Purchased an additional 12.5 percent in 2001 for approximately $2.0 million. Purchased  
  an additional 12.5 percent ownership in 1999 for approximately $2.4 million; purchased  
  50 percent ownership in 1998 for approximately $8.0 million.

Charlotte’s Networks 92%(3) Issued 1.0 million shares of MRV common stock valued at approximately $61.5 million  
  for approximately 10 percent in 2000.

Equity Method Subsidiaries

RedC Optical 35% $5.0 million in cash and issued 150,000 shares of MRV common stock valued at   
  approximately $11.5 million for approximately 35 percent in 2000.

Others Various(4) Issued 646,000 shares of MRV common stock valued at approximately $16.7  
  million for ownership interest in various non-consolidated equity investments.

(1)  MRV receives 97 percent of EDSLan’s profits or losses from the date of each investment. 

(2) MRV receives 90 percent of Tecnonet’s profits or losses from the date of each investment. 

(3)  MRV’s ownership on a fully diluted basis (assuming exercise of all stock options) is approximately 53 percent. 

(4) Represents various investments, all of which are less than 50 percent ownership and not consolidated. During 2001, MRV recorded $9.2 million in 
impairment losses relating to these investments (see Note 2). 

(5)  The purchase price for each of these acquisitions is based on the common stock and cash consideration provided. The issuance prices of MRV common 
stock used in the calculation of the purchase price is based on the average market price five days before and after the terms were agreed upon. 

Income and losses from non-consolidated equity method subsidiaries are included in “Other income (expense)” in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations. 

MRV is obligated to provide funding to certain of these investments. As of December 31, 2001 the remaining contractual obligation is $10.6 million. 
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6. Accrued Liabilities 

Accrued liabilities as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, consisted of the following (in thousands): 

 2001 2000
Payroll and related $   10,428 $   16,851
Restructuring 8,677 --
Other 19,930 18,043
 $   39,035 $   34,894

7. Income Taxes 

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001 is as follows (in thousands): 

 2001 2000 1999
Current
  Federal $ (12,454) $     7,344 $    (2,139)
  State (2,196) 5,622 (413)
  Foreign 4,918 6,841 1,701
 (9,732) 19,807 (851)
Deferred
  Federal 11,278 (17,354) (1,487)
  State 3,942 (7,137) 45
  Foreign (1,013) (714) 140
 14,207 (25,205) (1,302)
 $     4,475 $   (5,398) $   (2,153)

The income tax provision (benefit) differs from the amount computed by applying the federal statutory income tax rate to income before taxes as of 
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 are as follows: 

 2001 2000 1999
Income tax provision (benefit, at
  statutory federal rate (34%) (34%) (34%)
State and local income taxes, net of
  federal income tax effect (6) (6) (6)
Permanent differences 28 30 15
Research and development credit -- -- (6)
Foreign taxes at rates different than
  domestic rates (2) 3 17
Change in valuation allowance 15 10 --
 1% 3% (14%)
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The components of deferred income taxes as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 are as follows (in thousands): 
    

 2001 2000
Allowance for doubtful accounts $  2,239 $  2,083
Inventory reserve 11,153 6,133
Warranty reserve 1,241 647
Deferred stock compensation -- 6,630
Net operating losses -- 29,014
Accrued liabilities 6,108 2,158
Other 549 1,463
 21,290 48,128
    Valuation allowance (20,692) (16,901)
    Net short-term deferred income tax assets 598 31,227

Net operating losses 34,903 --
Depreciation and amortization 7,695 6,209
Investments 3,674 --
Other 6,527 --
 52,799 6,209
    Valuation allowance (30,168) --
    Net long-term deferred income tax assets 22,631 6,209
 $ 23,229 $ 37,436

Realization of the net deferred tax assets is dependent on MRV’s ability to carry losses back to prior periods or on generating sufficient taxable 
income during the future periods in which temporary differences will reverse. Management reviews its deferred tax assets and has provided a valuation 
allowance based on its assessment of the expected future benefit to be ultimately received from each asset identified. Although realization is not assured, 
management believes it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets will be realized. 

As of December 31, 2001, MRV had federal and state net operating loss carryforwards available of $106.4 million and $156.5 million, respectively. For 
the year ended December 31, 2001, MRV generated additional federal and state net operating losses of $46.4 million and $48.3 million, respectively. For 
federal and state income tax purposes, the net operating losses are available to offset future taxable income through 2021 and 2011, respectively. 

In 1995, MRV, through a subsidiary in Israel, qualified for a program under which it is eligible for a tax exemption on its income for a period of ten years 
from the beginning of the benefits period. This benefit is due to expire in 2006. Due to operating losses at this subsidiary, no tax benefit was received in 
2001 or 2000. MRV received a tax benefit of approximately $300,000 in 1999. 

MRV does not provide United States federal income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its foreign operations. MRV’s policy is to leave the income 
permanently invested in the country of origin. Such amounts will only be distributed to the United States to the extent any federal income tax can be 
fully offset by foreign tax credits. 

8. Short-Term Obligations 

Short-term obligations consist of secured and unsecured lines of credit, short-term loans and notes entered into with certain financial institutions. As of 
December 31, 2001 and 2000, these short-term obligations totaled $18.7 million and $9.1 million, respectively. Certain assets of MRV’s subsidiaries have 
been pledged as collateral on these borrowings. The weighted average interest rate on these obligations at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was 2.4 percent 
and 6.1 percent, respectively. These obligations are incurred and settled in the local currencies of the respective subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2001, 
MRV had approximately $9.3 million of available short-terms borrowings. 
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9. Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt consisted of the following as of December 31, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands): 

 2001 2000
Secured notes payable to financial institutions bearing interest
  ranging from 6.5 percent to 18.0 percent, payable in monthly
  and quarterly installments of principal and interest through
  October 2012 $ 11,097 $ 13,815
Term loan with a financial institution bearing interest at
  7.0 percent as of December 31, 2001, paid in full in
  February 2002 50,000 50,000
 61,097 63,031
  Less - current portion (52,226) (2,937)
 $  8,871 $ 60,878

The following summarizes the required principal payments on long-term debt as of December 31, 2001 (in thousands): 

Year Ending December 31,
  2002 $  52,226
  2003 2,433
  2004 1,986
  2005 1,653
  2006 1,443
  Thereafter 1,356
 $  61,097

Certain assets of MRV totaling $38,000, primarily through its foreign subsidiaries, have been pledged as collateral under these obligations. 

10. Interest Rate Swap 

MRV entered into an interest rate swap in the second quarter of 2000 to effectively change the interest rate characteristics of its $50.0 million variable-
rate term loan presented in Long-Term Debt, with the objective of fixing its overall borrowing costs. The swap was entered into concurrently with the 
issuance of the related debt. The notional amount, interest payment and maturity dates of the swap match the principal, interest payment and maturity 
dates of the related debt. Accordingly, any market risk or opportunity associated with this swap is offset by the opposite market impact on the related 
debt. The interest rate swap is considered to be 100 percent effective and is therefore recorded using the short-cut method. The swap is designated as a 
cash flow hedge and changes in fair value of the debt are generally offset by changes in fair value of the related security, resulting in negligible net impact. 
The gain or loss from the change in fair value of the interest rate swap as well as the offsetting change in the hedged fair value of the long-term debt are 
recognized in Other Comprehensive Loss. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 133, the interest rate swap related to this long-term debt was not recognized in 
the balance sheet, nor were the changes in the market value of the debt. The net settlements of the swap are included in Interest expense and other. For 
the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company recorded an unrealized loss on its interest rate swap of $3.2 million included in Other Comprehensive 
Loss. At December 31, 2001, the interest rate swap had a fair value of $3.2 million included in Other Current Liabilities. In February 2002, MRV paid 
off the Long-Term Debt of $50.0 million and terminated the swap. 

11. Convertible Subordinated Notes 

In June 1998, MRV completed a private placement of $100.0 million principal amount five-year, convertible subordinated notes (the Notes) of which 
$10.0 million were redeemed in February 2002. The Notes bear interest at five percent per year, payable semi- annually, and are convertible into common 
stock at the option of the holders. The conversion rate is 73.94 shares of common stock per $1,000 principal amount of the Notes, equivalent to 
a conversion price of $13.52 per share, an initial premium above market price. The conversion rate is subject to adjustment in certain circumstances, 
including dividends payable in common stock, issuance of stock rights to all holders of common stock or stock splits or distributions to common 
stockholders in connection with a tender offer. If a change in control, as defined, occurs, the holders of the Notes have the right to require MRV to 
repurchase the Notes at face value along with any interest accrued. MRV has the right, after June 2001, to redeem the Notes at 102 percent of face value, 
and after June 2002 for 101 percent of face value. The Notes are not entitled to the benefits of any sinking fund. 

 
In connection with the private placement, MRV incurred costs of $4.0 million. These costs are being amortized using the effective interest method over five 
years, the life of the Notes. Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $767,000, $723,000 and $681,000, respectively. 
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12. Commitments and Contingencies 

Lease Commitments 

The Company leases all of its facilities and certain equipment under noncancellable capital and operating lease agreements expiring in various years 
through 2049. The aggregate minimum annual lease payments under leases in effect on December 31, 2001 were as follows (in thousands): 

Operating Leases
2002 $   8,253
2003 6,995
2004 4,619
2005 3,007
2006 2,233
Thereafter 5,675
 $ 30,782

Annual rental expense under noncancellable operating lease agreements for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $8.8 million, $4.9 
million and $4.7 million, respectively. 

Royalty Commitment 

Through subsidiaries in Israel, MRV is obligated to the Office of the Chief Scientist of the Government of Israel (Chief Scientist) with respect to the 
government’s participation in research and development expenses for certain products. Amounts received by MRV from the participation of the Chief 
Scientist were offset against the related research and development expenses incurred. Accordingly, MRV’s royalty to the Chief Scientist is calculated at 
a rate of three percent to five percent of sales of such products developed with the participation up to the dollar amount of such participation. MRV 
received participation of $500,000 for the year ended December 31, 1999. No participation was received for the year ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. 
The remaining future obligation as of December 31, 2001 is approximately $913,000 million which is contingent on generating sufficient sales of this 
selected product line. 

Accounts Receivable 

MRV, through foreign subsidiaries, has agreements with several financial institutions to sell its receivables with recourse; in the event of customer’s 
default, MRV must repurchase the receivables. At December 31, 2001 and 2000 the Company is contingently liable for approximately $14.8 million 
and $23.4 million, respectively, relating to such receivables sold with recourse. No gain or loss on the sale of these receivables has been included in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

Litigation 

The Company has received notices from third party alleging possible infringement of patents with respect to product features or manufacturing processes. 
Management believes such notices are common in the communications industry because of the large number of patents that have been filed on these 
subjects. The Company’s policy is to discuss these notices with the senders in an effort to demonstrate that the Company’s products and/or processes 
do not violate any patents. The Company is currently involved in such discussions with Lucent, Ortel, Rockwell and the Lemelson Foundation. The 
Company does not believe that any of its products or processes violate any of the patents asserted by these parties and the Company further believes 
that it has meritorious defenses if any legal action is taken by any of these parties. However, if one or more of these parties was to assert a claim and 
gain a conclusion unfavorable to the Company such claims could materially and adversely affect the business, operating results and financial condition 
of the Company. 

From time to time, MRV is a defendant in lawsuits involving matters which are routine to the nature of its business. Management is of the opinion that 
the ultimate resolution of all such matters will not have a material adverse effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

13. Stockholders’ Equity 

Authorized Shares 

On May 10, 2000, the Board of Directors and stockholders of MRV approved an increase in the authorized number of shares of its $0.0017 par value 
common stock from 80.0 million to 160.0 million shares relating to the two-for-one stock split distributed on May 26, 2000. MRV is authorized to issue 
up to 1.0 million shares of its $0.01 par value preferred stock, of which none is issued or outstanding as of December 31, 2001 and 2000. 
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Stock Split 

The Board of Directors authorized the splitting of MRV’s common stock on a two-for-one basis for stockholders of record on May 11, 2000 and the 
resulting shares from the split were distributed on May 26, 2000. All references to share and per-share data for all periods presented have been adjusted 
to give effect to this two-for-one stock split. 

Stock Options 

MRV has various stock option and warrant plans that provide for granting options and warrants to purchase shares of MRV’s common stock to 
employees, directors and non-employees performing consulting or advisory services for MRV. The plans provide for the granting of options, which meet 
the Internal Revenue Code requirements for qualification as incentive stock options, as well as nonstatutory options. Under these plans, stocks option 
and warrant exercise prices generally equal the fair market value of MRV’s common stock at the date of grant. The options and warrants generally vest 
over three to five years with expiration dates ranging from six and ten years from the date of grant depending on the plan. The plans provide for the 
issuance of 13.4 million shares of common stock over the remaining life of the plans. 

In July 2000, Luminent and MRV entered into four-year employment contracts with the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) of Luminent. The agreements provide for annual salaries, performance bonuses and a combination of stock options to purchase common stock 
of MRV and Luminent. The CEO received approximately 316,000 options to purchase shares of MRV common stock at $32.56 per share (a substantial 
discount) expiring in five years. The CFO received approximately 22,000 options to purchase shares of MRV common stock at $33.44 per share (a 
substantial discount) expiring in five years. These options are immediately exercisable, however they provide for the repurchase in the event of voluntary 
termination. These grants have been accounted for under APB No. 25 and the intrinsic value (fair market value less exercise price) results in additional 
deferred stock compensation of approximately $10.8 million that is being amortized over the four year vesting period. Furthermore, Luminent granted 
4.8 million and 800,000 of its stock options to the CEO and CFO, respectively. The options are exercisable at $6.25 per share and vest over four years. 
These grants have been accounted for in accordance with APB No. 25 and the intrinsic value (original mid point of filing range, $14, less $6.25) resulted 
in aggregate deferred stock compensation of approximately $43.4 million. The deferred stock compensation is being amortized using the graded vesting 
method over four years. The deferred stock compensation incurred from the granting of MRV and Luminent options for a total of $54.2 million has 
been included in the consolidated financial statements of MRV. 

In September 2001, Luminent’s President and Chief Executive Officer resigned. In connection with the resignation, Luminent’s President and Chief 
Executive Officer received a severance package, as defined in the employment agreement dated July 2000, providing severance payments of approximately 
$1.0 million and the immediate vesting of all outstanding MRV and Luminent stock options held as of the date of resignation. The MRV and Luminent 
stock options are exercisable through September 11, 2003. Additionally, an immediate recognition of deferred compensation expenses of $18.9 million 
was recorded during year ended December 31, 2001 as a result of the acceleration of these stock options. 

Stock option information with respect to MRV’s stock option and warrant plans is as follows (in thousands): 

                                                                             2001                                              2000                                               1999
  Wtd Avg.                               Wtd Avg.  Wtd Avg.
 Shares Ex. Price                     Shares Ex. Price Shares Ex. Price
Outstanding, beginning of
  year 7,081 $  7.43                      5,497 $  4.37 5,323 $ 2.40
Granted 1,360 4.74                      4,375 8.14 1,581 9.21
Exercised (487) 2.98                     (2,791) 2.52 (1,208) 2.31
Forfeited (887) 5.65                           -- -- (199) 2.63      
Luminent options converted
  to MRV options 5,341 15.87                           -- -- -- --
Outstanding, end of year 12,408 $ 11.07                      7,081 $  7.43 5,497 $ 4.37  
Weighted average fair value
  of options granted during year  $  9.79                               $ 20.79  $ 7.33

During 2001 and 2000, MRV granted 444,000 and 3.8 million options to purchase MRV common stock with exercises that differed from the market 
price of the stock on the grant date. As of December 31, 2001, the weighted average exercise price and weighted average fair value of these options were 
$3.00 and $3.00 per share, respectively. As of December 31, 2000, the weighted average exercise price and weighted average fair value of these options 
were $5.67 and $21.99 per share, respectively. 
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Information about MRV stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001 is summarized as follows (in thousands): 

  Weighted Average
 Number Outstanding Remaining Contract Number Exercisable
Exercise Price as of 2001 Life as of 2001
$ 2.59 - $ 3.95 5,407 7.93 2,212
$ 4.21 - $ 6.98 1,474 9.05 385
$ 9.50 - $11.06 391 8.52 93
$12.00 - $16.00 2,681 8.57 2,208
$17.63 - $33.44 2,455 7.94 712
 12,408  5,610

Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation 

SFAS No. 123 permits companies to recognize as expense over the vesting period the fair value of all stock-based awards on the date of grant. The 
Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting restrictions and are 
fully transferable. Because MRV’s stock-based compensation plans have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options and because 
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, management believes that the existing option valuation models 
do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of awards from the plan. Therefore, as permitted, MRV applies the existing 
accounting rules under APB No. 25 and provides pro forma net loss and pro forma loss per share disclosures for stock-based awards made during the 
year as if the fair value method defined in SFAS No. 123 had been applied. Net loss and net loss per share for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2001 would have increased to the following pro forma amounts (in thousands, except per share data): 

 2001 2000 1999
Additional compensation expense $  24,874 $  24,998 $  2,888
Pro forma net loss (350,968) (177,951) (15,797)
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per sha (4.60) (2.71) (0.29)

The following assumptions were applied: (i) no expected dividend yield for all periods, (ii) expected volatility of 191 percent for 2001, 162 percent for 2000 
and 64 percent for 1999, (iii) expected lives of 4 to 6 years for all years, (iv) and risk-free interest rates ranging from 3.93 percent to 6.73 percent for all 
years. 

Common Stock Purchase Warrants 

In connection with various public and private offerings of common stock and acquisitions MRV has issued warrants to purchase additional shares of 
common stock. 

A summary of warrant activities for the three years ended December 31, 2001 is as follows (in thousands, except exercise prices): 

 Number of
 Shares Exercise Prices
Balance, December 31, 1998 5,770 $0.14 to $17.50
  Issued -- --
  Exercised (874) 2.40 to 10.00
  Canceled (1,556) 0.14 to 13.38
Balance, December 31, 1999 3,340 $2.13 to $17.50
  Issued -- --
  Exercised (895) 2.29 to 16.25
  Canceled (5) 2.13
Balance, December 31, 2000 2,440 $2.13 to $17.50
  Issued -- --
  Exercised (74) 2.38 to 2.63
  Canceled (874) 2.63 to 17.50
Balance, December 31, 2001 1,492 $2.13 to $2.80

In November 1996, MRV completed a private placement of 400,000 stock and 1.0 million three-year warrants to purchase common stock for a total price 
of $4.0 million. During 1999, prior to the expiration of the three-year warrants, 800,000 warrants were exercised at $10.00 per share, for total proceeds 
of $8.0 million. The remaining 200,000 warrants expired. 
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14. Segment Reporting and Geographical Information 

MRV operates under a business model that creates and manages start-up companies and independent business units. These companies fall into two 
segments: operating entities and development stage enterprises. Segment information is therefore being provided on this basis which differs from 
prior period presentations. Development stage enterprises that MRV has created or invested in are developing optical components, subsystems and 
networks and products for the infrastructure of the Internet. Operating entities of MRV design, manufacture and distribute optical components, optical 
subsystems, optical networking solutions, and Internet infrastructure products. 

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant accounting polices. MRV evaluates segment 
performance based on revenues and operating income (loss) of each segment. As such, there are no separately identifiable segment assets nor are there 
any separately identifiable statements of operations data below operating income. 

Business segment net revenues for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001 are as follows (in thousands): 

 2001 2000 1999
Operating entities $332,844 $319,394 $288,524
Development stage enterprises -- -- --
 $332,844 $319,394 $288,524

There were no inter-segment sales for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999. 
 

Net revenues by groups of products for each of the years in the period ended December 31, 2001 are as follows (in thousands): 

 2001 2000 1999
Optical passive components $     39,010 $     29,148     $         3,687
Optical active components 97,653 97,335 67,722
Switches and routers 74,675 80,784 108,000
Remote device management 18,987 19,167 28,698
Network physical infrastructure
  equipment 59,902 56,747 50,521
Services 18,934 20,892 23,461
Other 23,683 15,321 6,435
 $   332,844 $    319,394 $     288,524

For each of the three years in the period ended and as of December 31, 2001, MRV had no single customer that accounted for more than 10 percent of 
revenues or accounts receivable. MRV does not track customer revenue by region for each individual reporting segment. A summary of external revenue 
by region for each of the three years in the periods ended December 31, 2001 are as follows (in thousands): 

 2001 2000 1999
United States $   108,550 $    119,190 $     122,054
European Community 176,745 162,881 134,160
Pacific Rim 42,925 31,891 28,921
Other 4,624 5,432 3,389
 $   332,844 $    319,394 $     288,524

Business segment operating loss before other income (expense), provision (benefit) for income taxes and extraordinary item for each of the three years 
in the period ended December 31, 2001 are as follows (in thousands): 

 2001 2000 1999
Operating entities $ (274,831) $ (100,759) $        4,017
Development stage enterprises (45,796) (48,810) (20,011)
 $ (320,627) $ (149,569) $    (15,994)



58 59

Operating loss before other income (expense), provision (benefit) for income taxes and extraordinary item for each of the three years in the periods 
ended December 31, 2001 are as follows (in thousands): 

 2001 2000 1999
United States $ (240,467) $   (69,671) $      (5,781)
Foreign (80,160) (79,898) (10,213)
 $ (320,627) $ (149,569) $    (15,994)

15. LAN Business 

In 1999, MRV recorded one-time charges of approximately $13.8 million primarily related to the write-down of inventories related to its LAN product 
lines. These charges have been included in cost of goods sold for the year ended December 31, 1999 in the accompanying consolidated statement of 
operations. In February 2000, MRV discontinued manufacturing and supporting its LAN product lines. 

16. 401(K) Plans 

MRV has 401(K) savings plans (the Plans) at certain subsidiaries under which all eligible employees may participate. The Plans provide for MRV to 
make matching contributions to all eligible employees. In 2001 and 2000, approximately $838,000 and $731,000 respectively, was charged as expense 
related to these plans.

17. Supplemental Statements of Cash Flow Information (in thousands) 

                                                                                                                  For the Years Ended December 31
 2001 2000 1999
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
  Cash paid during period for interest $  10,549 $   3,635 $  1,652
  Cash paid during period for income taxes 5,323 130 4,887
Supplemental schedule of noncash
  investing and financing activities:
  Fair value of asset acquired, net of
    cash received $    2,153 $  48,611 $       --
  Less: Liabilities assumed (2,153) (44,190) --
  Cash received in acquisitions $         -- $   4,421 $       --     
  Cash used in acquisitions -- 48,938 --
  Cash used in acquisitions, less
    cash received in acquisitions $         -- $  44,517 $       --
Common stock issued in connection with
  investments in subsidiaries $  36,575 $  90,126 $       --
Decrease in fair value of interest rate swap $    3,198 $         -- $       --
Non-cash deferred stock compensation $    7,816 $         -- $       --
Fair value of stock options issued in
  connection with investments $      503 $        -- $       --
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18. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) 

 First Second Third Fourth
 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
                                  (in thousands, except per share amounts)
Year Ended December 31, 2001

Revenues, net $ 100,104 $   89,530 $   69,730 $   73,480
Costs and expenses:
  Costs of goods sold 66,391 88,765 57,621 54,612
  Research and development 25,005 25,782 19,307 24,719
  Selling, general and administrative 38,412 31,777 49,528 30,959
  Restructuring charges -- 11,934 1,724 453
  Amortization of goodwill and other           
    intangibles 28,139 29,028 27,218 42,099
 157,947 187,286 155,398 152,840
    Operating loss (57,843) (97,756) (85,668) (79,360)
Other expense, net (520) (2,373) (1,410) (18,474)
  Loss before benefit (provision) for
    income taxes, minority interest
    and extraordinary gain (58,363) (100,129) (87,078) (97,834)
(Provision) benefit for income taxes 2,683 939 (6,215) (1,882)
Minority interest 1,388 5,051 3,646 1,492
Extraordinary gain -- -- -- 9,949
  Net loss $ (54,292) $ (94,139) $ (89,647) $ (88,275)
Basic and diluted earnings per share $    (0.73) $    (1.24) $    (1.16) $    (1.14)
Basic and diluted weighted averages
  shares 74,370 76,111 77,404 77,545

Year Ended December 31, 2000

Revenues, net $   65,072 $   73,935 $   82,720 $   97,667
Costs and expenses:
  Cost of goods sold 42,736 45,793 47,910 66,932
  Research and development 11,891 14,758 21,803 25,626
  Selling, general and administrative 16,028 26,467 52,699 29,506
  Amortization of goodwill and other
    intangibles -- 12,055 27,348 27,411
 70,655 99,073 149,760 149,475
    Operating loss (5,583) (25,138) (67,040) (51,808)
Other expense, net (488) (1,190) (5,764) (2,136)
  Loss before benefit (provision) for
    income taxes and minority interest (6,071) (26,328) (72,804) (53,944)
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 494 (1,377) (1,005) 7,286
Minority interest (287) (45) (570) 1,698
Net loss $  (5,864) $ (27,750) $ (74,379) $ (44,960)
Basic and diluted loss per share $    (0.10) $    (0.44) $    (1.06) $    (0.62)
Basic and diluted weighted averages
  shares 56,850 62,754 70,122 72,768
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OTHER INFORMATION

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
 SHLOMO MARGALIT, PH.D.
 Chairman of the Board, Chief Technical Officer and Secretary

 NOAM LOTAN
 Director; President and Chief Executive Officer

 IGAL SHIDLOVSKY, PH.D.
 Director; Managing Director, Global Technologies

 GUENTHER JAENSCH, PH.D.
 Director; President, Jaensch Enterprises; Chairman of the Board, Biophan Technologies, Inc.
  
 BARUCH FISCHER, PH.D.
 Director; Max Knoll Professor in Electro Optics and Electronics;
 Dean, Electrical Engineering Department, Technion, Israel Institute of Technology
 
 DANIEL TSUI, PH.D.
 Director; Professor, Electrical Engineering, Princeton University;
 1998 Nobel Prize Laureate, Physics
 
 SHAY GONEN
 Chief Financial Officer

 NEAR MARGALIT
 Vice President of Marketing and Business Development

 TODD ROPE
 Vice President of Technology

 KEVIN RUBIN
 Vice President of Finance

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
 CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
 20415 Nordhoff Street
 Chatsworth, California 91311

 AUDITORS
 Ernst & Young LLP
 Los Angeles, California

 COUNSEL
 Kirkpatrick & Lockhart LLP
 Los Angeles, California

 TRANSFER AGENT
 American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
 New York, New York

INVESTOR MATERIALS
Copies of MRV Communications, Inc.’s Annual Reports, 10-K’s, 10-Q’s, and other financial literature may be obtained by writing to the Investor 
Relations Department, Diana Hayden,  at Corporate Headquarters, by calling (818) 886-MRVC (6782) or via our web site: www.mrv.com

Dividends
Since its inception, MRV has never declared or paid cash dividends on its common stock. MRV’s announced dividend policy is that it currently intends 
to retain all of our earnings, if any, for use in the operation and expansion of its businesses and does not intend to pay any cash dividends to stockholders 
in the foreseeable futurte.
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